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Company overview

Leed Petroleum PLC is an oil and natural
gas exploration, development

and production company focused

on the US Gulf of Mexico.

The Company has interests in 17 US Federal Outer
Continental Shelf blocks and one onshore field,
with its headquarters in Lafayette, Louisiana.
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Operational

+ Recommenced dnlling programme n February 2010
encountering 65 feet of net pay sand in the Ship Shoat 201
A-6 well Independent reservoir auditing firm attnbuted
nitial net 1P reserves of 1 1 MMBOE and net 2P reserves
of 1 3 MMBOE (84% natural gas) to the reservorr Followang
completion of factlities during calendar Q2 2010, daily
preduction for the Company more than doubled from
previous level as a result of adding the A-6 well

» Proved developed produang reserves at year end were 70%
higher than at mid-year and 25% higher year-on-year

« Higher-capacity natural gas compressor nstalled at
Eugene Island 184 platform

+ Installed gas lift supply hine in Main Pass 64 o1l field

Financial

+ Raised £20 0 mullion (£1S 3 milhion net after expenses) from
the 1ssuance of 400 million Ordmary Shares at 5 pence
Cash on hand of $10 8 million at 30 June 2010

+ Amended bank credit fachty and deleveraged the balance
sheet by reducing outstanding bank debt to $26 5 rmlhion
at period end

+ Revenue of $23 3 million earned 1n the twelve months
ended 30 June 2010

dunng August 2009, approximately doubling well

production capability

« East Cameron 317 field returned to production during
December 2009 after being shut in for approximately
15 months following Hurricane ke in 2008

- For the twelve months ended 30 June 2010, net oil, natural
gas and natural gas hquids production sold was lower in
comparson to the twelve month penod ended 30 June 2009
(447 MBOE versus 738 MBOE respectively) However, a
sigmificant upward trend in oil, natural gas and natural
gas hqunds production began during May 2010 with the
commencement of production from the Ship Sheoal 201
A-6 well Recent production rates for that well include
a curtailed rate of apprommately 1,148 gross (920 net)
BCEPD for the month of October 2010
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Post perniod update

+ Sidetracked the Main Pass 64 #1 well which was drilled to
a total measured depth of 8,086 feet on 19 September 2010
Leed owns a 25% worlung interest and a 19 18% net revenue
interest in the well which encountered 71 net feet of true
vertical thickness pay The well was placed on production
dunng November 2010

» Dunng November 2010, the borrowing base on the Company's
revolver facility was re-determined at $23 0 mallion, a
reduction of $2 0 milhon which 1s payable on or before
31 March 2011 In addition, the Company reached an
agreement with its bank, UniCredit Bank AG, whereby
the bank agreed to waive certain conditions of default
concermng the Company's credit facility that were expected
to occur at the 31 December 2010 measurement date in
return for an additional prineipal payment of $10 0 million
on or before 31 March 2011 and a 1% increase 1n the
credit facility interest rate effective 15 December 2010

+ Leed 1s now explonng additional alternatives to
re-finance the Company These alternatives mclude,
but are not limited to, selling all or part of the Company's
oll and natural gas assets in order to pay off some or
all of 1ts bank debt by 31 March 2011, merging with
another company, re-financing wath another bank
or another potential transaction
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Chairman’s statement

Robert Adar Non-executive Chairman

Leed Petroleum PLC is pleased
to report progress 1n developing
1ts resources and reserves 1n
the shallow offshore waters

of the Gulf of Mexico

After beginning the penod with our dnllng
programme suspended due to low commodity
prices, conditions improved and in Novemnber
2009 the Company was able to raise net
proceeds of £19 3 milhion through the placing
of 400 mulion Ordinary Shares to institutional
and other shareholders to recommence our
dnlling campaign [ am grateful for the
continuing support of our shareholders

We began applying funds from the share
placing m January 2010 with the acquisition
of an existing platform at Ship Shoal Block 202
In early February we successfully dnlled the
Ship Shoal A-6 well from that platform and
placed the well on production in early May 2010,
more than doubling the Group's production
rate at that time Qur success at Ship Shoal
demonstrates that our strategy 1s still
relevant, repeatable and scalable

www leedpetroleum com

Leed successfully drilled the Ship Shoal
201 A-6 well in the second half of the
financial year, providing improved cash
flow, enhancing shareholder value and
diversifying sources of production.

In Apnl 2010, Leed was awarded Grand Isle €’
Block 96 at the federal lease sale We beheve
that Grand Isle 36 will complement our leasehold

position and upside reserve potential in the Your Boar: d is exploring
Grand Isle area Most of the Group’s o1l and

natural gas reserves are undnlled as reported a bl’O ad range Of

in Leed's recent reserve auditor’s report, which : :
mdicates 78 % of our proved and probable (2P) f;t rateglc alternatlves *

reserves remain undeveloped at the end of
this financial year

Like many other Gulf of Mexico companies,
our planned actiittes were severely impacted
as a result of the BP Macondo well blow-out
whilst drilling and other activities were
suspended as the US Department of the Intenor
reorganised and began promulgating new rules
Energy 1s the hfeblood of the industnalised
world, but it comes with certan nsks Leed
1dentifies and manages nsk by employing hard
working seasoned professionals who pay
attention to detail, do things nght, and follow
strict standards and procedures to produce the
Group's o1l and natural gas reserves After
penod end, we began moving forward with
the development of our property portfoho
taking advantage of improved o1l pnices by
participating m the dnlling of a non-operated
o1l well at Main Pass 64
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Leed had a vary challenging year financially,
with EBITDAX (“earmings before mterest,
taxes, depreciation, depletion, amarnisation,
exploration costs and impainments”} for the
year falhng to a negauve $1 0 milhon from

a positive $23 9 rmilhon n the prior year An
after tax loss of $18 1 million was mcurred on
vevenue of $23 2 mllion for this finanaal year
Thus was after an impairment of $23 5 milhon
lowered the carrying value of 1ts East Cameron
317/318 filed (3 non-operated, non-core asset)
during the restated 2009 finanaial year and
de-recogmsing $7 2 million of deferred tax
assets at financial year end 2010 Revenues
and cash fiows began to ymprove towards the
end of the financial year as a result of new
production from the Ship Shoal A-6 well

As a result of adverse well performance and
production delays, most notably the delay
1n recompleting the Eugene Island A-8 well
to the more prolific T-1 sand reservour,

we have agreed to reduce our bank debt by
$12 0 milhon on or before 31 March 2011
With that in mind, your Board of Diectors
1s considening a broad range of strategic
alternatives including, but not lunited to,
divesting some or all of the Company’s o
and natural gas assets, secunng a new bank
credit factlity and/or other potential transactions,
such as a merger with another company

Leed Petroleum PLC
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Ship Shoal 202
Platform A

In choosng a strategic option, the Board wall
carefully consider whether the Company has
adequate finanaal resources to cantinue to
develop 1ts resource base

After two years as a Non-executive Director,
Stephen Fleming announced he wall stand
down from the Board at the Annual General
Meeting (‘AGM™) m December 2010 and
Anthony Stalker will be norunated in hus
stead as a Non-executve Director and
representative of our largest shareholder,
ADM Galleus Fund Lunited through their
wholly owned subsidiary Asia Special
Situations GJP1 We thank Stephen for his
service and wish hun all the best

I thank management, staff and Directars for
therr hard work and efforts in what has been
a challenging year for the Company and for
the industry in the Gulf of Mexco After the
strategic options avatlable to the Company are
analysed, the Board will decide on the path
forward to maximze shareholder value We
thank all of our shareholders and employees
for ther support

Robeck P Adan

Robert Adair
Non-executive Chairman
25 Novemnber 2010
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Oil and natural gas reserves

RIGHT

Directors’ meeting at
corporate headquarters
June 2010

Leed owns a diversified portfolio of assets ranging from high impact exploratory prospects
to lower risk undeveloped proved reserves

Proved and probable reserves (also referred to as “2P reserves™) are the estimated quantities of crude o1l, natural gas and natural gas hquids which
geological, geophysical and engineening data demonstrate with a specified degree of certamnty to be recoverable in future years from known
reservorrs and which are considered commercially producible The figures are estimated on the basis that there should be a 90% probability that
the actual quantity of recoverable reserves will be more than the amount estimated as proven and there should be a 50% probabihty that the
actual quantity of recoverable reserves will be more than the amount estimated as proved and probable Leed's proved and probable reserves are
evaluated by independent petroleum engineers

At 1 July 2010, the Group’s proved and probable reserves compnsed the following

Harural % of
ot Natural gas gas liquids Total total
{mbhD} {mmcf) (mgal) (mboe) (mboe)
Proved reserves

Developed producing 620 6,187 3,136 1,726 8%
Non-producing 822 6,041 5,227 1,953 9%
Undeveloped 2,053 33,595 6.826 7.815 38%
3,495 45,823 15,189 11,494 55%

Probable reserves
Developed 327 3,729 1,152 876 5%
Undeveloped 1,963 36,897 3,753 8.202 1%
2,290 40,626 4,906 9,178 415%
2P reserves 5,785 86,449 20,095 20,672 100%

A substantial amount of Leed's ail and matmral gas reserves 2re carrently categorised s undeveloped. There can be 1o assurince that Leed will be ahle to frnd the futore capital required o fully develop its portfoio of
undeveloped ol and natural gat reserves. In addition, the économics of developing such reserves are very senarive 10 commeodity prices As such, future adverss movements in commodity prices could in turn have an
adverse kmpact on the economics of developing Leed s undeveloped ofl and natural gas reserves.
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Chief Executive and operational report

Howard Wilson Chief Executive Officer

The Company has continued to
make progress in implementing
1ts strategy of developing a
diverse portfolio across the

Gulf of Mexico region

Asset base

With the spudding of the Ship Shoal A-6 well
in February 2010, the Company recommenced
development activity on 1ts portfolio of seventeen
offshore properties in the US waters of the
Gulf of Mexico and one onshore Louisiana
property Numerous high quality projects with
excellent potential have been identified and
planned, which have the capacity to increase
proved developed producing reserves and
thereby our cash flows All of the Company's
offshore properties are located 1n shallow
waters of the Cuter Conunental Shelf of the
Gulf of Mexico
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Acquisition of an existing platform in

January

2010 enabled our Company

to place the newly drilled Ship Shoal
201 A-6 well online only 94 days

after spud date.

The operational focus for the Group has been
to maxumse production from its producing
fields and, following the side-by-side equity
fund raising and credit facihty amendment
during late 2009, the Group successfully
drilled the Ship Shoal 201 A-6 well Leed's
techmical staff approach evaluation of each
field from different but complementary
professional perspectives that allow a full
understanding of each project

Production

For the year ended 30 June 2010 the
Company's total net production averaged
1,224 BOEPD (37% crude o1l, 56% natural

gas and 7% natural gas hquids), as compared
to 2,022 BOEPD {43% crude oil, 49% natural
gas and 8% natural gas hquds), in the prier
year The Company expenenced several well
performance 1ssues duning the 2010 finanaial
year, as monthly production rates ranged from
ahigh of 1,943 BOEPD 1n July 2009, dechned
to a low of 610 BOEPD i Apnl 2010, and
rebounded to 1,862 BOEPD dunng June 2010
as a result of placing the Shup Shoal 201 A-6
well into production

({4

Leed’s third year of
being listed on AIM
includes operational
success at Ship Shoal.
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As demonstrated with our recent success

at Ship Shoal, we believe our strategy

remains relevant, repeatable and scalable.

LEFT

Ship Shoal 202
Platform A

Reserves

Leed’s resumption in dnilling has resulted in
proven developed produang reserves that have
increased period-to-period As of 1 July 2010,
the Group had net proved producing reserves
0f 1,726 MBOE an increase of 25%, as compared
to 1,386 MBOE a year earlier The Company
has an independent o1l and natural gas reserves
assessment prepared at least annually

Ship Shoal

Leed's success in developing its Ship Shoal 201
beence, where 1t 1s the operator and holds a
100% working interest, was one of the most
sigmficant events during the past year Leed
15 also the operator of two adjacent blocks
(Ship Shoal 197 and Ship Shoal 202), where
1t holds a 75% working interest

Following the Group's equity fundraising in late
November 2009, Leed acquired an existing
platform on Ship Shoal 202 dunng January 2010
and successfully dnlled the Ship Shoal 201 A-6
well during February 2010 The Ship Shoal
opportunmty developed a downthrown fault
closure with o1t and natural gas reserves in

a Pleistocene sand stone After reaching a
measured depth of 13,341 feet, the Company
logged 65 feet of net pay sand 1n one reservoir
and flow tested the Ship Shoal 201 A-6 well
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at an rutial rate of 10 4 MMCFPD and 423 BOPD
(approximately 2,156 gross BOEFPD equating
to 1,729 net BOEPD) Following refurbishment
and completion of the facilities, the well was
placed online on 6 May 2010, a mere 94 days
after the well had been spudded, demonstrating
the advantage of operating in the Gulf of Mexico
where there 15 a wealth of exsting infrastructure
to support new production

Commencement of production from this

well more than doubled the entire Company’s
production at the time During the month

of October 2010, production from the Shup
Shoal 201 A-6 well was curtalled and averaged
approximately 1,148 BOEPD gross (920 BOEPD
net) We believe this is a clear demonstration
that Leed's approach 1s relevant, repeatable
and scalable to other projects m the

Leed portfolio

Eugene lsland

Leed's Eugene Island field 1s located
approximately 50 mules south of Morgan
City, Lowsiana tm approximately 80 feet
of water The property compnses three
licences Eugene Istand 172, 183 and 184
Leed operates the property and owns an
average worlung 1nterest of 75% across the
three licences

Leed Petroleum PLC
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Top view of the
Eugene Island
wellheads

The field was onginally discovered by a major
o1l company 1n 1955 with the onginal wells
dnlled adjacent to the salt dome which straddles
blocks 172 and 184 Several low risk development
and exploration oppartunities have been
idennfied and these comprise the upside
potential of these under exploited assets

The Company’s A-6, A-7 and A-8 wells at
Eugene Island dunng 2007 and 2008 further
confirmed the region’s geology and allowed
further reinement of our understanding

of the potential

The much antiapated recompletion of the

A-8 well from the Mid-Tex sand reservoir to
the more prohfic T-1 sand reservoir has yet to
occur Production from the A-8 well continued
te decline during the past year, but has yet to
decline to rate that would justify approval from
the BOEMRE ("Bureau of Ocean Energy
Management, Regulation and Enforcement”)
to recomplete the well into the T-1 reservoir

It 15 possible that the reservoir will not deplete
to alevel sufficient to obtain regulatory approval
of the well recompletion for some time
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Chief Executive and operational report continued

Our goal is to be in the position

to self-fund our future exploration
and development.

ABOVE
Sunnse at the heliport
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Bugene Island continued

Assunung there are no regulatory road blocks
dunng finanaal year 2011 and adequate financaal
resources, the Company 1s considering an
alternative plan of dnlling a sidetrack well into
the T-1 sand n Leu of waiting for the A-8 well
to deplete 1ts current producing zone Leed
looks forward to the possibility of exploiting
and unlockmng the cash flow from the T-1 sand
at Eugene Island which 1s estimated to contan
2,892 net mboe of proved developed reserves

Dunng 2010, the Company mstalled additional
natural gas compresston to enhance long-term
field deliverability

At period end, the A-6 and A-7 wells were not
produang due to sand control 1ssues The Group
1s currently evaluating the best approach to
economucally attempt to place these wells
back on production Dunng October 2010,
production from the Eugene Island field
averaged approximately 441 BOEPD gross
(266 BOEFD net)

Main Pass

Main Pass 64/65 Geld 15 a non-operated property
located in1 federal waters approximately 18 mles
east of Vene, Louisiana in about 30 feet of
water Leed holds a working interest averaging
approximately 25% across the Man Pags
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64/65 field, which was discoverad wn 1982 and
consists of two heences all of Main Pass block 64
and the federal water portion of Main Pass
block 65 The field sits atop a large deep seated
structural high which sets up a combination of
four-way and stratigraphic closures which trap
both o1l and natural gas Natural gas produced
n the field 15 utilised for operations and to gas
hift o1l, the only product being sold

Main Pass 64/65 o1l production comes
predomunately from two sands, the 6,900-foot
and 7,300-foot sands The majonty of the field’s
histoncal production and remaining proved oil
reserves are contained 1n the 7,300-foot sand
which 15 subject to a successful waterflood
pressure maintenance program utilising a
“dump flood” 1n which water 1s crossflowed
directly from a shallower higher pressure
water sand to the oil beanng 7,300-foot sand

In addition to the producing reservorrs,
exploration and exploitation potential exists
in the intermediate and deep intervals Wells
in the non-operated Main Pass 64/65 field were
restored to full production capabiity duning
the past financial year by installing a gas Wft
supply ine from an offset operator’s field
However, production was hampered whilst the
ovmer of the third party o1l sales ine serving

Leed Petroleum PLC
annual report and accounts 2010

09

SUMMARY OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE
AND OPERATIONAL REPORT

the field made repawrs toitshne At year end the
field was shut in However, during August 2010
the operator of the field began barging ol
prior to the recommencement of pipehine
service, which occurred dunng early
November 2010 Dunng October 2010 oil
production from the Main Pass 64/65 field
averaged approximately 824 BOEPD gross
(158 BOEPD net)

After year end, the operator of the field
sidetracked the Mamn Pass 64 #1 well,
reaching a total measured depth of 8,086 feet
on 19 September 2010 Leed ownsa 25%
worlkang interest and a 19 18% net revenue
nterest in the well which encountered
approximately 71 feet of true vertical
thickness pay The well was placed on
production dunng November 2010

In addiion to 1ts interests in Main Pass 64
field, Leed was awarded Main Pass block 115
m MMS lease sale 205 1n 2007 The block 1s
located approxmately 83 miles southeast of
New Orleans, Louisiana in 50 feet of water
The Company has identified several exploratory
opportunities on the heence and owns 100%
working interest 1n the property subject to
Byron Energy Pty Ltd’s night to acquire up to
25% of Leed’s working mterest 1n the block

The Company has a number of high
quahty prospects in the Guif of Mexico
that have yet to be fully exploited

Dunng the second half of the year,
the Company aggressively addressed
its challenges and, near year end,
significantly creased production

At period end, 2P reserves were
adjusted to 20 7 mboe
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Chief Executive and operational report continued
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The Ship Shoal 201 A-6 well encountered
hydrocarbon bearing sands covering
65 feet of total net pay.

East Cameron

‘The non-operated East Cameron 317/318 field
15 located offshore approximately 112 mules
south of Cameron, Louisiana in about 224 feet
of water Both licences produce from Upper
and Lower Pleistocene progradational deltaic
sandstones Leed owns a 25% working interest
in the East Cameron 317/318 freld

The field returned to preduction during
December 2009 after bemng shut in

for approxamately 15 months following
Hurnicane Tke 1n 2008 The field has since
flowed natural gas at a steady rate, meluding
approximately 2 0 gross {0 4 net) MMCFPD
dunng October 2010

Grand Isle

Grand Isle 95, 96 and 100 sit in approximately
200 feet of water about 100 males south of
New Orleans, Lowsiana and form part of a
large field discovered by a major el company
n 1974 Leed 15 operator and holds a 100%
workung interest subject to a worlang interest
election of up to 25% by Byron Energy Pty,
Ltd The Grand isle 95 field 15 located on the
upthrown side of a large regonal fault which
trends northeast to southwest with hydrocarbons
trapped in several sand intervals It is beheved
that salt migration was responsible for ecreating

the fault system, setting up the structural trap
which crests in the northwestern corner of
Grand Isle 95 Sediments dip to the southeast,
with hydrocarbon accurnulations generally
trending northeast to southwest and are
comprised of a complex senes of enechelon
bar sands Hydrocarbons are trapped either
stratigraphacally or by fault bound structural
closures or a combination thereof Producng
honzons provide strong analogies for Leed’s
exploration prospects in Grand Isle blocks 95
and 96

Leed acquired 1ts Grand Isle bicences over
blocks 95 and 100 in May 2006 (expires

May 2011} and block 96 1 Apnl 2010
{expires Apnl 2015) Assurming the Company

15 successful in funding this project during early
2011 and natural gas prices are at sufficent
levels to justify the investinent, Leed plans

to dnill a well on Grand Isle 95 prior to its
expiration date

Together the Grand Isle block 95 and 96
Ticences provide Leed wath a matenal working
interest i a range of prospects from pure
exploration resources to a proved reserve
development opportunity Should Leed’s
dnlhng campargn prove successful, the
Company would need to install a platform
and faalities on 1ts leasehold

South Marsh Island

South Marsh Island consists of two licences,
South Marsh Island 8 and Eugene Island 133,
both of which are located in approximately 60
feet of water about 90 miles south-southeast
of Lafayette, Lowisiana South Marsh Island 8
was imitially developed by a major o1l and
natural gas company and was acquired by Leed
m August 2008 Leed 15 operator and holds a
100% working interest subject to a working
mnterest election of up to 25% by Byron
Energy Pty, Ltd i South Marsh Island 8 and
a 75% working interest in Eugene Island 133

The Company has identified numerous
opportunities in the field with 3-D seismac,
subsurface well control, and by matching
histoncal production data The opportumties
lie on the southeast flank of a large salt
dome The field has produced from numercus
sands at depths ranging from 10,000 feet

to 15,000 feet

O1l and natural gas were trapped n structural
closures bound on the west by salt, the north
and south by radial faults, and the east by
structural dip The opportunities consist of
proved undeveloped, probable undeveloped,
and possible undeveloped locations targeting
numerous pay sands
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The proved undeveloped locations are well
defined and updip to previously producing
wells The probable undeveloped locations

are predominately in undnlled fault blocks
adjacent to production and updip to wells which
logged o1l and or natural gas The numerous
prospects at South Marsh [sland will enable
Leed to dnill wells with multiple objectives

Should Leed’s dnlling campaign prove successful,

the Company will have to install a platform
and facllities on its lease

Sorrento

Leed’s only onshore property 15 located 1n

a field created by a salt dome structure in
Ascension Pansh, Lousiana approximately
50 mules northwest of New Orleans Leed

15 the operator and holds a 100% working
mterest It contains both proved reserves

and exploratory prospects as confirmed by
the Company’s reserves auditor The field

was discovered by a major o1l company 1n
1929 and Leed holdsa 100% working 1nterest
n its acreage which 15 located on the eastern
and northern flanks of the Sorrento salt dome
Proved reserves are located in the Lower
Miocene Marg A Sand and Planuhina Sands
The trapping mechanisms are both structural
and stratigraphic Leed's acreage 1s located at
the sastern edge of the productive Ohgocene
Marg Vag trend, which the Company believes
has additional untapped exploration potential

As of the date of this report, the Sorrento field,
comprised of one legacy well and a saltwater
disposal well, was shut m

West Cameron

West Cameron block 106 1s a promising
exploration prospect located in approximately
30 feet of water offshore Lowsiana and 1s
owned 100% by the Company, subject to
Byron Energy Pty Ltd's nght to acquize up

to 25% of Leed’s working mnterest in the block
There are no proved or probable reserves
associated with the prospect The licence drew
multiple bids at the federal auction 1n which
Leed acquired the prospect

Outlook

Durning the second half of the finanaal year
the Company significantly increased production
We are excaited about progressing forward with
development of Leed’s resource base Our staff
have worked diligently to prepare a high quahty
line up of projects that provide the capacity
for strong growth 1n reserves and production
once we have avercome the finanaial hurdles
and other hurdles that we currently face

24 Wi

Howard Wilson
Chief Executive Officer
25 November 2010
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Newly dnilled
Ship Shoal 201
A-6 well
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Financial review

James Slatten Chief Operanng Officer

The Company’s period under
review 1s the finanaal year ended
30 June 2010 The financial year
ended 30 June 2009, which has
been restated for a non-cash
property impairment (refer

to Note 30 “Restatement of
prior period” wathin the current
year financial statements),

1s also presented to aid

with comparison.

Consolidated statement of income

The 2010 financal year presented many
challenges, both operationally and financially
The Company incurred a loss of $18 1 million
duning the 2010 financial year, as compared
to a restated loss of $18 5 mithon for the
prior year

Revenues dechined 31% to $23 2 mulhon,
panapally as a result of adverse well performance
1ssues and pipeline shut ns that resulted 1n an
overall drop in production of 40% (447 MBOE
for the 2010 financial year, as compared to
738 MBOE for the prior year) The Group's
daily production rate duning the 2010 financial
year began at 1,943 BOEPD 1n July 2009 and

www leedpetroleum com

Lower production was a significant
contributing factor leading to a loss
of $18.1 million for the Company, but
the trend improved towards the end
of the year with cash flow from the
newly drilled Ship Shoal 201 A-6 well.

dechined to 610 BOEPD 1n Apnl 2010 before
rebounding te 1,862 BOEPD 1n June 2010
after the Shup Shoal 201 A-6 well was placed
onlne in May 2010 Oi and natural gas
commodity price movements included a 26%
mcrease 1n average o1l prices ($73 92 per bbl
in the 2010 financial year, as compared to
$58 88 per bbl in the prior year) and a
decrease in average natural gas pnices of 18%
($4 64 per MCF in the 2010 finanaial year, as
compared to $5 67 per MCF in the prior year)
Gas processing fees were $2 7 milhon for the
2010 finanaal year, an increase of $2 2 mithon
over the pnor year, due to a favourable ownership
adjustment regarding the Group's interest in
the N Terrebonne gas processing plant and
Tebane gas fractionation plant, which 1s based
on the percentage of natural gas production
from our Eugene Island field, as compared to
total overall natural gas production processed
by the plants

Production costs per BOE mcreased to

$16 87 per BOE in the 2010 financial year,

as compared to $7 44 per BOE for the prior
year The increase per BOE was a reflection

of lower production rates coupled with higher
production costs A majonty of the higher
production costs were apphceable to Eugene
Island, where the A-6 and A-7 wells were shut
m at period end due to sand contral 1s5ues

€«

Leed is seeking a broad
range of strategic
alternatives to move
E,he Company forward.
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Depletion {per BOE of proved/probable reserves
produced) was $24 89 per BOE for the 2010
financial year, as compared to $27 61 per BOE
for the prior year The depletion rate per BOE
was reflective of the level of o1l and natural gas
reserves and the mix of productton from each
producing field duning each financial year

Administrative costs were $15 2 mullion

in the 2010 finanaal year, as corpared to
$12 2 mullion for the prior year The year-on-year
mcrease of $3 0 millhion included increased
insurance costs of $2 5 milhon, which wasa
result of industry-wide insurance premum
mcreases expenenced by most o1l and gas
companies operating in the Gulf of Mexico
dunng the past year The number of employees
and Dhrectors receiving wages or fees averaged
29 for the peniods ended 30 June 2010 and
2009 No management bonuses were accrued
for or paid during erther financial year

The Group adjusts the fair value movements
of 1ts denvatives through other gains and losses
at the end of each financial period Changes

m the fair value of the Group's denvatives
outstanding at each financial penod end
resulted 1n an unreahsed loss of $1 0 mulhon
for the 2010 financial year and a gain of

$6 5 mulhion for the prior year Reahsed

gains and losses on o1l and natural gas
commodity contracts that closed in the
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FOR THE PERIODS PRESENTED,

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES INCLUDE:

Reszared

2010 2009

Admintstrative expenses $000 $000
Employee benefits expense excluding share-based payments 4,522 5,906
Share-based payments 2,272 1,156
Professional fees and outside consultants 1,366 459
Delay rentals for evaluation assets 539 339
Insurance, mncluding that related to o1l and natural gas properties 6,121 3,657
Other and muscellaneous 390 635

15,210 12,152

current year were also included 1n other gains
and losses and included a gam of $1 7 milhion
n each of the 2010 and 2009 finanoal years

Duning the year, the Group carned out a
thorough review of its impairment testing
procedures and concluded that the single
cash generating unit that previous reviews
had been based on was inappropnate to the
current business structure Cash generating
units are now based on individual fields 1n
distinct geographical locations with proved
and probable reserves, unless cash flows are
directly inked to another field As a result

of this more detailed and rigorous assessment
of impairment, an impairment was identified
with respect to the East Cameron 317/318 field
(a non-core and non-operated property for
which the Group has a 25% worlang interest)
which was offline from August 2008 untill
December 2008 due to third party pipeline
damage from Hurnicane fke Upen further
analysis, 1t was deterruned that this field was
impaired at 30 June 2009 due to low natural
gas prices coupled with negative volumetric
reserve adjustments As a result, the Group
recorded before tax non-cash impairment
expense of $23 5 million for the 2009
financial year Accordingly, the Group's
finanaial statements for the 2009 inanaial
year have been restated to reflect the
aforementioned adjustment

As noted in the Report of the Directors,
EBITDAX for the 2010 financial year included
a loss of $1 0 malhion, as compared to mcome
of $23 9 mulhon for the prior year The vanance
between years was princrpally due to a combined
$17 9 mitlion decrease 1n revenues and other
gains and losses, coupled with a $6 2 mallion
decrease in the amount of depreciation,
depletion and amortisation added back as an
adjustment to EBITDAX for the 2010 financial
year, as compared to the prior year

Statement of financial position

In the year ended 30 June 2010, carrying
value of the Group's property plant and
equipment increased by a net of $3 4 mlbon
to $127 0 rmllion During the year, the
Company recorded gross asset additions of
$15 7 milhon (including $13 1 mullion to dnll
and complete the Shap Shoal 201 A-6 well)

In the current year, the Group also expended
$0 7 million towards exploration and evaluation
assets, including a 100% working interest in
Grand Isle 96 for $0 4 mulhon at the federal
lease sale Grand Isle 96 1s adjacent to

Grand Isle 95, where the Company holds

a 100% working interest subject to an
election of up to a 25% working interest

by Byron Energy Pty, Ltd
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Financial review continued
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Cash flows and funding

Durning November 2009, the Company
completed an additional equity fund rasing
pursuant to which 1t 1ssued 400 milhion
Ordinary Shares (5p) at 5 pence each to raise
net proceeds of $31 6 milhon The Group
used the net equity proceeds primarily to
re-commence 1ts drilling programme and

to reduce its credut facility

Also during November 2009, the Group entered
mto an amended and restated credit faclity
with its bank, which was further mod:fied
durmg Movember 2010 and 15 more fully
descnbed i Note 15 “Borrowings™ of the
finanaal statements within this annual report
At 30 June 2010, the amended and restated
credut facility compnsed two tranches a revolver
loan ($25 0 mullion pninapal balance) and

a term loan ($1 5 million pnncipal balance)
The effect of the November 2010 modification
to the Group’s credit facility resulted in

the following

the Group will be required to make a
principal payment of $12 0 million on
or before 31 March 2011,

« the interest rate on the revolver and term
tranches of the credit facility wall increase
by 1% effective 15 December 2010 Asa
result, the interest rate will be at three
month LIBOR plus 7 25% for the revolver
facility and three month LIBOR plus 8 0%
for the term facility as of that date, and




ABOVE
Bugene laland facility

«  the maximum credit facility will be set
at $30 0 milllon as of 15 Decemnber 2010
and will be reduced by $6 0 millionin a
semi-annual basfs thereafter

As of the date of this repart the Group is
exploring several alternatives including divesting
same or all of its ofl and natural gas assets in
order to raise $12 0 million or more to pay off
some or all of its bank barrowings prior to
31 March 2011 Additional alternatives under
consideration include, but are not limted to,
securing a new bank credit facility and/or
other patential transactions such as a merger
with another company

Going concern

‘The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts
(nchximg selected senaitivities) for the Company
covering 2 twelve month period from the
authorisation of these financial statements.
The cash flow forecasts reflect the Company's
plan for the coming year, mcluding expected
net proceeds from divestitures, projected
production rates, commaodity prices, capital
expenditure levels, principal payments,
Interest rates and expected compliance with
loan covenants. Based on these assumptions,
which the Board believes are reasonable, these
cash Bow forecasts show that the Group should
have sufficient liquidity to continue as a going
concern. Nevertheless, possible adverse future
events or ciroumstances are beyond the control
of the Company and seriously influence doubt
on the Company'a ability to continue as a
going concern Moreover, the regulatory

environment in the Guif of Mexico post the
BP ofl spill at Macondo is in flux and some
regulatary changes under consideration in
the US Congress could imperil the Company's
business model Clearly, it is Impossible to
predict the regulatory changes that may come
about on account of governmental initatives

Puture growth of the Group during the next
twelve months and beyond Is heavily dependent
upon the Group's ability to raite encugh
capital to continue the development of ita
undeveloped ofl and natural gas reserve
portfolio, which represents approximatsly
76% of its ofl and rturzl gas reserves caloulated
on a BOB basis at 1 July 2010 The cash flow
forecazts asgume the Group will be successful
in raising sufficient capital to further develap
these ofl and natural gas reserves

After carefully considering the aforementioned
factors, cash Bow forecasts and material
uncertainties set forth within Note 2 20
“Significant accounting policies — gning concern”
within the financial staternents for the 2010
finamical year, the Directors” assessment is
that Leed Is 2 going concern Clearly, we will
face challenges in the period ahead.

SUMMARY OF THE
FINANCIAL REVIEW

+ EBITDAX was a negative $1 0 milion
for the 2010 financal year, as compared
to a pomtve $23 9 million for the
2009 financial year

+ 'The Company undertook an additional
equity fundraiming for 400 millien
Ondinary Shares (5p) at 5 pence per
share and deleveraged its financial
structure by paying down debt during
the finandial year from $40 8 milhon
to $26 5 million at penod end.

+ The Company has agreed to further
reduce its bank debt by $12 0 milhon
on or before 31 March 2011
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Corporate governance and Directors’ remuneration report

Corporate governance

As an AIM quoted company Leed Petroleum PLC 1s not required to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code (the "Corporate Governance Code”)
(formerly referred to as the Combined Code on Corporate Governance pror to 1 July 2010) However, the Directors support high standards of corporate
governance and confirm that, where practicable, having regard to the Company’s current stage of development, the Company comphes with the
man principles of the Corporate Governance Code The Company has adopted and operates a share dealing code for Directors and senior employees

The Durectors are accountable to shareholders for the creation and delivery of strong sustainable financial performance and creation of long-term
shareholder value To achieve this, the Board directs and monitors the Group's affairs, assesses nisk, sets strategic objectives whilst attempting to
ensure that all necessary resources are in place to achieve the business objectives, and reviews management’s performance An element of nisk 1s
central to the activities of o1l and natural gas exploration and development and 1t 15 the Directors” objective to be aware of the nisks, to evaluate
them and to mitigate them where possible to msure against them where appropnate and cost-effective and to manage any residual nsk within
the finanaal constraints under which the Company operates

Directors

‘The Board compnises a Chairman, two Executive Directors and four Non-executive Directors Biographies of the Directors are presented on
pages 18 and 19 Robert Alcock 1s a Sentor Non-executive Director as defined by the Corporate Governance Code A summary of attendance
by Darector follows

Attendance Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
record at 30 June 2010 30 Juna 2010 30 June 2009 30 June 2009
Board meetings Director status Attended Eligible Antended Eligible
Robert Adair Chairman 10 10 5 [
Robert Alcock Non-executive 10 10 6 6
Stephen Fleming Non-executive 10 10 3 3
fan Shaun Gibbs Non-executive 10 10 5 6
Peter Hirsch Non-executive 10 10 6 6
James Slatten Executive 10 10 6 6
Howard Whison Executive 10 10 6 [

Audit and Remuneration Committees
‘The Board has established an Audst Comrmuttee and a Remuneration Commuttee with formally delegated duties and responsibilities Robert Aleock
and Peter Hirsch are members of the Audit Commuttee Robert Adair, Stephen Flermung and Peter Hirsch are members of the Remuneration Comnrruttee

The Audit Commuttee 1s chaired by Robert Alcock and the Remuneration Commuttee 15 chaired by Robert Adair

All members of the Audit Commuttee are independent of management, attendance at Committee meetings 1s at the invitation of the Chairman
of the Audit Commuttee and the external auditors are invited to attend The external auditors have the nght at all times for direct access to the
Chairman of the Committee and to meet with the Commuittee without management present The Committee meets at least twice a year and has
responsibility for, amongst other things, reviewing the nature and scope of work for auditing the accounts and reviewing the half year and annual
financal statements before their submussion to the Directors The Commuttee 15 prowided terms of reference from the extemal auditors and focuses
particularly on comphance with accounting standards and financial reporting It 1s also responsible for ensuring that an effective system of internal
controls 15 mamtamed

The Audit Commuttee also advises the Board on appemtment of external auditors and approves the fees to be paid to the external auditors

The ultimate responsibility for reviewing and approving the annual accounts and intenm statements remains with the Board The Board also

has the overall responsibility for the Group's system of internal controls, including reviewing the effectiveness thereof Such system 1s designed
to manage rather than ehmmnate the nsk of fallure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance agamst
matenal misstatement of the accounts

The Remuneration Commuttee meets at least twice a year and has responsimhry for making recommendations to the Board on the compensation
of semor executives and determinung, within agreed terms of reference, the speafic remuneration packages for each of the Executive Directors
it also oversees the incentive share plan and sets performance conditions m respect of such arrangements The Commuttee penodically engages the
services of external consultants which are mdependent of the Company to assist them in their duties and did so dunng the 2010 financial year

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

The Corporate Governance Code states that the Board of Directors of a UK public company should include a balance of Executive and Non-executive
Directors Smaller UK public companues (being those that are below the FTSE 350 throughout the year immediately prior to the reporting year)
should have at least two independent Non-executive Directors The Company has four independent Non-executive Directors Robert Adar,
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Robert Aleock, Peter Hirsch and lan Shaun Gibbs Notwithstanding all Non-executive Divectors’ ehgibility to partiaipate 1n the Company's |
ncentve share plan and purchase stock in the Company, as at the date of this report the Board considers the four Non-executive Directors

to be independent Stephen Flermungis not an independent Non-executive Director due to his past business relationships with 18 Daiwa

Corporaticn and Asia Debt Management Galleus Fund Limited The Corporate Governance Code further provides that a majonty of

Non-executive Directors should be independent of management and free from any business or other relationship which could matenally

interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement

The Directors are satisfied that the Company continues to comply with the requirements of the Corporate Governance Code so far as possible
having regard to the size and current state of development of the Company

All Directors have access to the advice of the Group Chairman who s responsible to the Board for ensuring that Board procedures are followed
and that applicable rules and regulations are comphed with In addition, the Charrman ensures that Directors receive an apprapnate mmduction
to the Group and that the Board has access to appropnate knowledge development as required If necessary, the Chairman will arrange for

seminars to be held on speaific topics for the Board, as dene 1n 2010 regarding "Changes to the UK Comnbined Code of Corporate Governance™

The Board has procedures in place which are intended to ensure that if any Director has, or1s percerved to have, a conflict of interest in relation
to his Directorshup of the Group, or any transaction involving Leed, he will abstain from voting on that matter or counting towards a quorum
at a Board meeting in relation to that matter

Relationship with former Parent Company and successor

Prior to 1 February 2010, IB Daiwa Corporation ("IBD”) through its wholly owned subsidary, Asia Special Situations GJP1 Limited (ASSGJIP1"),
held 28 65% of the 1ssued share capial of Leed, which gave IBD sigmificant influence over the Company's management and affairs For example,
IBD could block any shareholder action that must be passed by a special resolution requinng a 75% shareholder vote Effective 1 February 2010,
IBD transferred all of 1ts ownership in ASSGJP1 to ADM Galleus Fund Limited {ADM”) n settlernent of certain claims, habilitzes and obhgations
At 30 June 2010, ADM through 1ts wholly owned subsidiary, ASSGJP1, owns 28 65% of the currently 1ssued share capital (193,695,929 total shares)
of Leed Petroleum PLC Stephen Fleming, a Non-executive Director of the Company, served as an executive director of IBD until 26 February 2010
and 15 a former employee of ADM

Investor relations

Communications with shareholders are given a high pnonty The Company keeps 1ts imstitutional shareholders up to date with 115 business
objectives and obtans their views on the Company by means of investor presentations Additionally, the Company 15 ready to respond
appropriately to particular tssues or questions that may be raised by imvestors through the contact email address, info@leedpetroleum com,
displayed 1n the investor centre section of the Company’s website, www leedpetroleun com

The Company s website 15 regularly updated and contains a wide range of information about the Company mcluding the AIM Adrmussion Document,
airculars sent to shareholders, share capital information, Company announcements and the annual report and financial statements

Directors’ remnuneration
Details of the emoluments for each Director for the peniods are presented below There were no bonuses pad or accrued for dunng financial year
2010 and financial year 2009

Year ended Year ended }

30 June 2010 30 June 2009 ‘

Director $000 $000 I

Robert Adair 110 113 '

Robert Alcock 39 39 |
Stephen Fleming 19 12
[an Shaun Gibbs 19 18
Peter Hirsch 28 29
Seala Takahashi - 7
James Slatten 422 397
Howard Wilson 526 485
Total 1,163 1,100

The terms of the Directors’ shareholdings and awards granted under the incentive share plan {stock appreciation nghts and restrncted stock units)
are discussed 1n the Report of the Directors, included wath the accounts, and at Note 21 “"Employees, Director and auditor remuneration” of the

accounts Duning the penods presented, the Directors did not sell any shares of the Company nor exeraise any nghts to Company stock
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Board of Directors

Robert F M. Adair

Non-executive Chairman (aged 54)

After graduating in geology from Oxdford Uruversity, Mr Adair quatified asa
Chartered Accountant and then had several years’ corporate finance experience
Mr Adair is executive chatrman of Melrose Resources ple, a UK isted o1l and gas
group which he founded 1n 1992 He 1s also executive charrman of Terrace Hull
Group ple, a property development and investment group listed on AIM He 1s also
Non-executive Chairman of AIM-hsted Plexus Holdings PLC, a company produang
mnnovative wellheads for the od industry

Robert H. Alcock

Semor Non-executive Director (aged 69)

Mr Alcock commenced his career as a financial analyst with Ford of Europe
from where he joined Gulf Oil Company 1n London, initially dealing with ther
exploration and production actities i the Middle East and Afnca He later moved
to senior financal positions with Gulf Oul Company and eventually became
Head of Strategic Planming for refiming and marketing in Europe Following

his time at Gulf Oul Company, Mr Alcock joined Black and Decker Inc as

chief finanaal officer based 1n Maryland, USA He left Black and Decker Inc

te becomne chief finanaal officer at RJR Nabisco UK Formerly the Non-executive
Chatrman of Anglo and Overseas [nvestment Trust and the Chairman of Next
Group Pensions Trustees Ltd, Mr Alcock 15 currently senfor Non-executive Dhrector
at Huntsworth Plc and a Non-executive Director of Connaught Group Plc

Mr Alcock 15 a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England

and Wales
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Howard H Wilson Jr.

President and Chief Executive (aged 52)

Mr Whison has over 29 years expenence in o1l and gas exploration and
production Mr Wilson has served a5 President and CEOQ of Leed Petroleum LLC
since November 2005 [mmediately prior to joming the Company Mr Wilson
was Vice President of Engineenng and Operations of Darcy Exploration, Inc
from January 2000 through to October 2002 when Darcy Exploration, Inc

was purchased by Novus Petroleum, Ltd He then served as Vice President

of Engineening and Operations of Novus Lowsiana, LLC until October 2005
Mr Wilson was also Vice President of Operations of Petsec Energy, Inc, a
position he held from 1993 to 2000 Between 1981 and 1993 Mr Wilson

held vanious techmcal and managerial posinons wath Placid Od Company and
Nerco Oil and Gas, Inc involving onshore and offshore ol and natural gas fields
1 Lowsiana, Mississippr and Texas Mr Wilson holds a Bachelor of Science
degree in Petroleum Engineenng from the Louisiana Polytechnic Institute, USA

Ian 8. Gibbs

Non-executive Director (aged 44)

Mr Gibbs is a founding partner and pninapal in Bromius Capital, a natural
resources focused mvestment and adwisory firm based in Singapore During
Mr Gibbs' investment banking career he has worked on a wide range of
transactions covering both equity and debr capital markets, MEA, debt
restructunng and prinapal investment Prior to founding Bromius, Mr Gibbs
was respansible for the SE Asian operations of a leading Asian independent
merchant bank, which mcluded a team that was directiy responsible for a
number of hugh profile and successful natural resources transactions across
the regron, with a particular focus on upstream ol and gas Mr Gibbs1sa
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales
and has an MA in Economucs from the University of Cambndge, England




www leedpetroleum com

James B. Slatten III

Chief Operating Officer (aged 52)

Mr Slatten has over 27 years of commercal, finanaal and legal expenence

n the o1l and natural gas industry He has served as an Executive Director of
Leed Petroleum LLC since November 2005 Immediately pnor to jomnting Leed,
Mr Slatten was Vice President of Land and Legal at Darcy Exploration Inc
(later Novus Lowsiana LLC) from March 2000 to November 2005 He served
in a stmilar capacity at Petsec Energy, Inc between 1998 and 2001 Mr Slatten
was a2 member of the Gordon, Arata law firm from 1985 to 1998, where he
focused on energy and financmg transactions, and he clerked for the United
States Distnct Court in New Orleans in 1983 t0 1984 Mr Slatten holdsa
Bachelor of Arts degrea n Political Science and Economies from the Unmiversity
of Lowsiana and post-graduate degrees in business management and law from
Tulane University

Peter D. Hirsch

Non-executive Director (aged 59)

Mr Hirsch 1s Managing Durecror of Hirsch Techrucal Ltd a London based
management consultancy specialising 1o business development and transformation
Durning his 25 year international career 1n 01l and natural gas exploration with
Shell, Chevron and others, he was responsible for several new ot field discovenes,
a posttive outcome from a complex North Sea equity re-determination and a
number of technical innovations Following an assignment as mnternal Change
Management consultant wath the company’s UK operating company, in which
his tearn reduced OPEX by several mullion dollars while improving service quality,
he founded Hirsch Technical in 1998 to support ciients i a wide vanety of
management consulting projects, mainly 1o the o1l and engineering sectors

Mt Hirsch has an MA 1in Natural Saence from University of Cambndge,
England, an MS¢ and DIC from Imperial College, University of London and

a Diploma in Management Studtes from Birkbeck College, London University
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Stephen Fleming

Non-executive Director (aged 39}

Mr Flermung is a Senuor Analyst ac ADM Capital a $1 8 bilhon private equity
and special situations fund management compasny based i Hong Kong,

Mr Fleming joined ADM Capital in 2005, and has twelve years of investment
expenence, having worked at Robertson Stephiens as a sentor equity research
analyst, and at MRET, where he managed a portfolio of investments in
venture-stage energy technology compames and clean energy projects

Mr Fleming served as an Executive Director at the IB Daiwa Corporation
unti] 26 February 2010, and was appomnted to the Board on 29 December 2008
Mr Fleming holds a BA degree in Government and East Asian Studies from
Harvard College and a Master of Business Admyumstration degree from Harvard
Business School
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Report of the Directors
for the year ended 30 June 2010

The Directors of Leed Petroleum PLC ( "Leed”, “the Company™ or “Parent Company”) present to shareholders this report and the audited
consobdated financial statements as of and for the year ended 30 June 2010 The year ended 30 June 2009 1s also presented for comparative
purposes The Company 1s histed on AIM part of the London Stock Exchange ("AIM™) and trades under the symbol LDP

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Company and 1ts subsidianies (together, the “Group” or “Leed™ 15 explonng, developing, producaing and operating il
and natural gas properties from onshore and offshore locations within the Gulf Coast regon of the United States As of 30 June 2010, the Group
has working interests in seventeen offshore blocks (including eight producing and nine non-producing) and one cnshore field The Group also
holds a small interest in a gas processing plant and a fractionation plant located onshore in Lowisiana In the current period, the Group acquired
one new offshore block from the Bureau of Ocean Energy Management, Regulation and Enforcement (‘BOEMRE") Leed believes the mterests it
owns in 1ts non-producing assets have significant potential for future production

Business review
The financial year ended 30 June 2010 presented many challenging 1ssues, both operational and financial

Operational review

Production performance was hampered throughout the year ended 30 June 2010, primanly at the Eugene Island field, where the Eugene Island 183 A-8
well continued to decline at a steady rate, but not in sufficient quantity to obtam regulatory approval for the recompletion into the more prolific
T-1sand Two other wells in the field, the Eugene Island 183 A-6 and Eugene Island 183 A-7, each expenenced significant downtime due principally
to sand control issues and were not producing at period end The Company s Main Pass 64/65 field also expenenced sigmificant downtime duning
the year ended 30 June 2010 due to ongomng pipehine repair 1ssues and was shut mn at penod end The East Cameron 317/318 field came back online
during December 2009 after being offlme for fifteen months while hurricane damage to the third party pipelme serving the field was repaired
Dunng May 2010, the Group commenced production from the Ship Shoal 201 A-6 well (dnlled dunng the first calendar quarter of 2010) at an
average rate of approximately 1,295 net BOEPD, which was the primary contributor to the ligher BOEPD rate for May 2010 and June 2010

Dunng the year ended 30 June 2010, the average net BOE produced per day reached a high of 1,943 net BOEPD duning July 2009 and dipped
to a low of 610 net BOEPD m April 2010, before rebounding to 1,862 net BOEPD at the end of June 2010

Financial review
‘The Group recorded a loss after taxation of $18 1 million for the period ended 30 June 2010, as compared to a restated loss of $18 5 million
for the prior year Components of the $18 1 milhon loss for the period ended 30 June 2010 compnsed the following:

Revenues: Revenues were $23 2 mullion for the period ended 30 June 2010, a decrease of 31% as compared to the prior year Oil, natural gas,
and natural gas hquids production for the penod ended 30 June 2010 was 447 MBOE, a decrease of 40% (49% crude o1l production decrease and
39% natural gas production decrease), as compared to 738 MBOE for the prior year Average crude ol prices were 26% higher ($73 92 per bbl for
2010 as compared to $58 88 per bbi for 2009), while average natural gas prices for 2010 were 18% lower than 2009 {$4 64 per mcf dunng the year
ended 30 June 2010, as compared to $5 67 per mcf dunng the year ended 30 June 2009) Gas plant processing fees included a year-on-year increase
of $2 2 mullion, as the Group's cwnership interest in the N Terrebonne gas processing plant and Tebone gas fractionation plant increased from

0 6% to 2 5% as a result of a favourable ownership adjustment which was based on the percentage of natural gas production from cur Eugene
Island field, as compared to total overall natural gas production processed by the plants
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Report of the Directors continued
for the year ended 30 June 2010

Business review continued

Financial review continued

Cost of sales The Group’s cost of sales was $22 2 milkon for the penod ended 30 June 2010, a decrease of $2 2 million as compared to the prior
year The year-on-year decrease was principally due to a $6 2 milhon reduction 1n depletion costs, which were partially offset by $4 0 million of
higher production costs, which include both lease operating costs and gas plant processing costs Lease operating costs were $2 0 mlhion higher
for the year ended 30 June 2010 as compared to the pnor year, pnmanly as a result of hugher work over costs associated with adverse welt performance
1ssues at the Eugene Island field Gas plant processing costs also included a year-on-year increase of $2 0 mullion, pnmanly due from the Group's
aforementioned annual ownership adjustment in the N Terrebonne gas processing plant and fractionation plant that was effective 1 January 2010

Admmistrative expenses The Group’s administrative costs were $15 2 million for the period ended 30 June 2010, an increase of $3 0 nuthon
over the prior year Insurance expenses, which are mncluded within admmistrative costs, were $6 1 milhion, an mcrease of $2 5 mllion over the
prior year

Other losses and gains The Group's other gains and losses were compnsed of net gains of $0 8 mullion for the year ended 30 June 2010,

as compared to a net gam of $8 1 milbon that was prinapaily the result of commodity hedging activity dunng the prior year Durning the year
ended 30 June 2010, forward commodity prices were substantially higher as compared to the prior year, which i turn resulted in lower
unreahised gains pertaining to the far value of its commodity hedges at peniod end

Non-cash impairment of o1l and natural gas properties The Group did not have any non-cash impairment expense or recovery during the
penod ended 30 June 2010, as compared to a restated non-cash impairment expense of $25 1 mullion dunng the peniod ended 30 June 2009,
which included a non-cash impairment of $23 5 milhon pertaimng to its East Cameron 317/318 field (a non-core and non-operated property

for which the Group has a 25% wordung mnterest) The East Cameron 317/318 field non-cash impairment was the result of a change m application
of accounting policy pertaining to :dentified cash generating urits for impairment testing purposes that was instituted for the penod ended

30 June 2010 The Group now tests each field for impairment as an indvidual cash generating umit, as compared to grouping all fields as a single
cash generating umit 1n pricr penods, since such an apphication provides more relevant information Changing application of this policy required
the financial statements for the period ended and as of 30 June 2009 to be restated See Note 30 “Restatement of prior peniod” within the
Group's financial statements mncluded 1n this report

Loss on sale of assets The Group did not record any gains or losses from the sale of assets during the period ended 30 June 2010 Dunng the prior
year, the Group recorded a loss on the sale of assets of $2 5 million pertaining to sale of a 25% worlung interest m the Group's Eugene Island field

Finance income and finance costs The Group's net finance mcome and finance costs for the penod ended 30 June 2010 of $3 6 milhon were
broadly flat, as compared to $3 8 milhon for the pnor year

During November 2009, the Company 1ssued 400,000,000 new Ordinary Shares at 5 pence par value to raise a net amount of $31 6 mulhon,
which was inter-conditional on amending its credit facihity After the share placement, the Group paid down its credit facility from $41 0 milhion
to $35 0 miulkion The Group made additional principal payments during the remainder of the year ended 30 June 2010 of $8 5 million, resulting
m an overall principal balance of $26 5 million at penod end pertamning to 1ts bank credit facihty On 30 June 2010, the Group's bank granted a
warver of certain defaults and the interest rate apphcable to its credit facihity mereased 2% effective 15 June 2010 Dunng November 2010, the
Company reached an agreement with the Group’s bank whereby the Company would make and addional pninapal payment of $12 0 million on
or before 31 March 2011 and the interest rate on its credit facility would imcrease by 1% effective 15 December 2010 1n return for waving certain
conditions of default that may exist at the 31 December 2010 measurement date

Key performance indicators

Leed focuses on four key performance indicators

(1) Growth of hydrocarbon reserves,

(2) Production of 01l and natural gas reserves,

(3) Cash flows and earnings growth, and

(4) Matenal adverse health, safety and environmental events

0il and natural gas reserves
The Group's o1, natural gas and natural gas hiquuds reserves, as quantified by an independent reserves auditor, are recapped below

Independent Reserve Report Date

2F rederves (tumboe) 1 July 2010 1 July 2009
Proved 115 112
Probable 92 103

207 215
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Key performance indicators continued
Proved reserves were relatively flat between the above referenced independent reserve reports A recap of the Group’s 2P reserves at 1 July 2010 follows

A substantial amount of the Group's o1l and natural gas reserves are currently categonsed as undeveloped There can be no assurance that the
Group will be able to fund the future capital required to fully develop 1ts portfolio of undeveloped o1l and natural gas reserves In addition, the
econarmics of developing such reserves are very sensitive to coramodity prices As such, future adverse moverments i commodity prices could
i turn have an adverse impact on the economics of developing the Group's undeveloped o1l and natural gas reserves

O1il, natural gas and natural gas liquids production
Details of the Group's net oil and natural gas volumes produced and sold are as follows

Restated

Year ended Year endad

Production 30 June 2010 30 June 2009
1l (thousands of barrels) 163 319
Natural gas {mmcf) 1,495 2,171
Natural gas hquds (thousands of gallons) 1,432 2,393
Total MBOE 447 738

Financial year-on-year production volumes were lower due to the natural production dechnes of existing wells, sand control 1ssues at the Eugene
[sland field and the postponement of the Group's dnilling program in calendar year 2009 due to the global financial cnsis that began in late 2008
Durning the first half of 2010, the Group re-commenced its dnlling programme by dnlling the Ship Shoal 201 A-6 well, which began producing
durning May 2010 at a rate of approximately 1,295 net BOEPD, effectively reversing the trend of dechming production expenenced in pnior months

Cash flows and earnings

The Group measures 1ts cash flow and earmings growth by utihsing the metric earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, depletion, amortisation,
exploration costs and impairments ("EBITDAX") EBITDAX for the years ended 30 June 2010 and 2008, respectively, was compnsed of the
following items

Restared
2010 2009
EBITDAX $000 1000 |
Loss before taxation (16,014) (26.048) l
Add back
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation 12,294 18,458
Impairment expense — 25,145
Unsuccessful exploration costs 11 16
Net financing and expense, mncluding accretion of decommissioning costs 3,574 3,849
Loss on sale of o1l and natural gas assets — 2472
(1,035) 23,932

Duning the years ended 30 June 2010 and 2009, the Group's loss before taxation was $16 9 million, a $9 1 rmilion decrease, as compared to a loss
of $26 0 mllion for the pnor year (see “Business review”} The decrease of $6 2 mulhon in depreciation, depletion and amortisanion for the year ended

30 June 2010 over the prior year was principally due to lower year-on-year o1l and natural gas production During the year ended 30 June 2010,
the Group had no non-cash impairment expense or recovery, as compared (o a restated non-cash impairment expense of $25 1 milhon for the
prior year Net financing expense was relatrvely flat year-on-year The Group did not sell any o1l and natural gas assets duning the period ended

30 June 2010, while 1t incurred a $2 5 mullion loss on the sale of o1l and natural gas assets of $2 5 million during the prior year

Health, safety and environmental
Dunng the years ended 30 June 2010 and 2009, the Group did not experience any matenal adverse health, safety or environmental events
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Substantial interests
The following shareholders have reported to the Company that they own more than 3% of the 1ssued Ordinary Shares of 5 pence each 1n the
share capital of the Company as at 30 June 2010

Percentage of issued
Shareholder share captzal
Asia Speaial Situations GJP1 Limited 28 65%
Standard Life Investments Ltd 8§51%
Allsanz Global Investors Global Equity Business Unit 802%
Scottish Widows Investment Partnership Lid 7 79%
AXA Framlington UK Select Ops 503%
F&C Management Ltd 4 36%
GK GOH Holdings 346%

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group

Going concern

Dunng the past financial year, the Group’s finanaial performance was affected by adverse production performance issues In the Eugene Island
field, the Eugene Island 183 A-8 well continued to dechne at a steady rate, but not mn sufficient quantity to obtam regulatory approval for the
recompletion into the more probfic T-1 sand Two other wells m the field, the Eugene Island 183 A-6 and Eugene Island 183 A-7, each failed to
produce at anticipated production levels, pnneipally due to sand control 1ssues, and were not producing at period end The Group’s Main Pass 64/65
field also expenenced significant downtime durng the year ended 30 June 2010 due to ongoing pipeline repair 1ssues and was shut 1n at penod
end The aforementioned items were the primary contributors to a 31% decrease in year-on-year revenues, resulting in a $1 0 million negative
EBITDAX for the 2010 financial year, as compared to positive $23 9 milhon EBITDAX for the 2009 financial year

The Group's banking facility 1s subject to finanaal covenants and other condinons whuch the Group monitors regularly These covenants and condittons
are sensitve to changes in EBITDAX, interest rates, commodity prices, production levels, net assets and estimated o1l and natural gas reserves
The Group’s abibty to comply with such covenants and conditions m future peniods 1s a key element 1n the ability of the Company to continue
as a going concern Dunng June 2010, the Group disclosed certam defaults on the czedit facility to 1ts bank, UniCredit Bank AG, that were
projected to exist at the 30 June 2010 review date The defaults related to EBITDAX ratios pertaiming to the penod ended 30 June 2010 that
were projected to be deficient at peniod end, pnncrpally due to oil and natural gas production performance 1ssues incurred dunng the aforementioned
twelve month penod that negatively affected EBITDAX. Following discusstons with UniCredit Bank AG, the Group agreed to an interest rate
increase of 2% on 1ts credit facility effective 15 June 2010 1n exchange for waving the projected defaults to ensure the Group would be n full
compliance with the terms and conditions of 1ts banking facilities at 30 June 2010 Dunng Novemnber 2010, the Group reached an agreement
with the Group’s bank whereby the Group would make an additional prnincipal payment of $12 0 milhon on or before 31 March 2011 and the
interest rate on 1ts credit facility would increase by 1% effective 15 December 2010 1n return for waiving certain conditions of default that may
exist at the 31 December 2010 measurement date The Group 1s uncertain of the bank’s stance pest 31 March 2011 and this could therefore
represent a significant nisk to the Group

As of the date of this repert the Group 1s explonng several alternatives including divesting some or all of 1ts 01l and natural gas assets in order to
raise $12 0 milhon or more m order to pay off sorne or all of its bank borrowings prior to 31 March 2011 Additional alternatives under consideration
clude, but are not Limuted to, securing a new bank credit facility and/or other potential transactions, such as a merger with another company

In anticipation of executing one or a combination of the aforementioned alternatves dunng the 2011 financial year and the accompanying
measurement uncertainty thereof, the Company wrote off its net deferred tax balances of $7 2 million duning the period ended 30 June 2010

The Directors have prepared cash Alow forecasts (ncluding selected sensitittes) for the Company covering a twelve month penod from the
authonsation of these financial statements The cash flow forecasts reflect the Company’s plan for the coming year, including expected net
proceeds from divestitures, projected production rates, commodity prices, capital expenditure levels, pnineipal payments, interest rates and
expected comphance with loan covenants Based on these assumptions, which the Board believes are reasonable, these cash flow forecasts show
that the Group should have sufficient liquidity to continue as a going concern Nevertheless, possible adverse future events or circumstances are
beyond the control of the Company and could senously influence the Company's ability to continue as a going concem Maregver, the regulatory
environment 1n the Guif of Mexico post the BP ol spill at Macondo 15 1n flux and some regulatory changes under constderatton n the US Congress
could impent the Company’s business model Clearly, 1t 1s impossible to predict the regulatory changes that may come about on account of
governmental imbatives
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Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group continued

Going concern continued

Future growth of the Group dunng the next twelve months and beyond 1s heawily dependent upon the Group’s ability to raise enough capital to
continue the development of 1ts undeveloped a1l and natural gas reserve portfolio, which represents approximately 78% of 1ts o1l and natural gas
reserves calculated on a barrels o1l equivalent "BOE”) basis at 1 July 2010 The cash flow forecasts assume the Group will be successful 1n raising
sufficient capital to further develop these oil and natural gas reserves

The Directors’ assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a gomg concern involves making a judgement about inherently uncertam future
outcomes of events and conditions based upon available information at the time of assessment Subsequent events and additional information
may result 1n outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made The Directors have concluded
that the combination of these circumstances represents a matenal uncertamty that casts sigmficant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern and that, therefore, the Group may be unable to realise 1ts assets and discharge its babilities in the normal course of business
Nevertheless, after making enquines and considening the uncertamties descnibed above, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future For these reasons, they continue to adopt the going
concern bass of accounting 1n preparng the annual financial statements

Commodity price risks

The Group derives substantially all of 1ts income from the sale of ol, natural gas and natural gas hquids Commodity prices are highly volatile and
the Group’s income will drop significantly with a matenal dechne in the prices of crude oil, natural gas and/or natural gas hquids The Group has
dervative commodity contracts 1n place to offset to a small degree commodity price dechnes and the Group could defer capital expenditures if
the pncing environment becomes unfavourable However, without a viable dnlling programme, the Group will come under finanaial pressure to
reduce 1ts debt and, 1n such an environment, growth would be difficult to achieve

Technical performance

Finding, developing and producing o1l and natural gas 1s a highly technical endeavour Large sums of capital expenditures must be spent to search
for and produce hydrecarbons Dnlhing disappointments can occur and engineering challenges can result i incurring lugher than expected costs
O1l and natural gas reserve estimates can rmusstate the quanuty of hydrocarbons in place, resulting 1n reserve revisions The Group’s dnlling and
production projects are evaluated on ngorous technical standards using state-of-the-art technology and the Group regularly accesses leading
wdustry service providers to advise it on technical issues relating to its operations Estimated o1t and natural gas reserves are reviewed and
updated twice annually and are audited by an independent reserve auditor at least once each year Such reserve reports are also utthsed as a basis
to periodically determune the Group's available borrowing base under the terms of its bank credit facthity and for impairment testing purposes
Due to numerous assumptions, including commadity prices, volumetric dechine curves, operating costs, capital expenditures and other factors,
actual results could vary matenally from esumates contamned within the reserve report prepared by the independent reserve auditor

Infrastructure limitations

A well developed o1 and natural gas production and transportation mfrastnicture exists in the onshore and offshore Gulf Coast region of the
United States Nevertheless, the Group 1s dependent on production, transportation and refining facilities owned by third parties to bnng its oil,
natural gas and natural gas bquid production to market The Group manages these nsks through contractual relationships with third parties and
to some extent certain risks of loss of access to transportation facthties are rmitigated by apen access laws Disruption of third party transportation
service can anse from a variety of arcumstances including weather damage, accidents and obsolescence In the financial year under review, the
Company did expenence a disruption in its East Cameron field as the sales pipeline owned by a third party was damaged and went out of service
following a hurncane during 2008 and did not come back online until December 2009 1n addition, the Main Pass field was shut in at period end
due to repaurs to its third party sales pipeline, which did not come back online until October 2010

Asset concentration risk

The Eugene Island and Ship Shoal assets are the Group's core producing assets and hence 1ts core cash flow source The Group plans to diversify

1ts production base through a combination of future acqusitions and dnlling on 1ts assets over tume n other areas in future peniods In the near
future, however, asset concentration risk may merease if the Group dnlls additional wells in the proximaty of its existing infrastructure 1n order

to expedite production and near-term cash flows

Capital development risk

Continued development of the Group’s portfoho of o1l and natural gas properties with proved and probable reserves will requare substantial
future outlays of capital If the Group 15 unable to finance 1ts share of such expenditures from existing cash flows and/or capital resources, the
Group wall have to rmse capital from other sources such as additional debt financing, placement of additional Ordinary Shares 1n an equity
offening, selling all or partial property interests or a combination thereof There can be nio assurance that the Group would be able to obtam such
finanang, In addition, there can be no assurance that existing partners in the Group's projects will be able to carry their pro-rata share of future
caputal ¢costs, which could 1n turn lead to delays and other adverse financial 1ssues Further, the Group does not control the timing or scope of
future capital projects on the Mam Pass 64/65 and East Cameron 317/318 fields, where it holds 2 minonty non-operated 25% workung interest
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Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group continued

Exposure to casualties and other events

Substantially all of the Group’s oil and natural gas assets are located 1 the shallow waters of the US Gulf of Mexico, where they may be subjected to
blow-cuts, humcanes, unstable sea floor conditions, fire and exploston, collision with moving vessels, pipeline and faclity outages, terronst attacks and
other casualties Followang the blow-out of an exploratory weil dnlled by BP offshore i the deep water of the Gulf ¢f Mexaco m Apnl 2010, BOEMRE
1ssued a sot month dnlhing moratorum in offshore waters in excess of 500 feet BOEMRE 1n effect cancelled all existing dnlling permruts regardless of
water depth by requinng all permits to include additional mfermation and plans covenng safety and environmental concerns As such, the deep water
dnlhing moratornum resulted 1n a de facto moratortum 1n shallow federal waters, where the Group has all of its offshore projects Due to the current
uncertanty surrounding the 1ssuance of dnlhing permuts, there can be no assurance as to the torung and scope of future dnlling aperations on the Group's
offshore projects Other potential future changes 1n the political and regulatory environment could also adversely impact the Group's performance

The Group carries mnsurance on 1ts assets that, when balanced aganst the cost, it bebeves 18 prudent and wathin industry norms, but this insurance
does not protect the Group from all casualty nsks By momtonng regulatory and pohtical developments and participating in industry trade
groups and forums, the Group reviews legal and regulatory matters that affect its business and revises 1ts operating plans in order to remamn in
compliance with existing regulations

Changing regulatory environment

‘The majonty of the Group's asset base 15 located wathun federal waters offshore in the Gulf of Mexaco and 15 subject to the junsdicuon of BOEMRE,

a federal agency within the US Department of the Intenor Pursuant to the Oil Pollution Act of 1990, as amended, the US Department of the
Intenor sets rules for demonstrating financial responsibihity in the event of an ail spill The Company currently satisfies 1ts financial responsibihity
requirement through the use of nsurance Should the US Department of the Intertor require higher levels of financial responsibility or should the
Company be unable to acquire insurance to satisfy such requirements, the Company would likely experience adverse effects

The Company utilises over the counter denvative commodity contracts (see Note 16 “Finanaal Instruments” m the consohdated financial statements)
to hedge against changes in 01l and natural gas commodity prices and may be subject to new regulations to be promulgated by the US Commodity
Futures Trading Commussion under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act enacted during July 2010, which may 1n
turn adversely affect the Group’s commodity price hedging programme and bank credst facility

Surety bonding

BOEMRE regulations require surety bonding for operators in the Gulf of Mexico and for future decommussioning obhigations There 15 a nsk the
Group may not be able to obtain sufficient bonding and may have to collaterialise obligations with cash If the Group was unable to provide such
bonds, 1t would not be able to proceed with 1ts operating plans

Personnel constraints

The market for orgamsational talent in the US o1l and natural gas industry 1s extremely competitive Since the Group employs only 22 full ime
employees (at 30 June 2010), the Group would suffer matenally if it lost the services of any of 1ts key personnel The Group strives to retain its
most precious resource - 1ts people - by offering 1ts employees a pleasant and challenging work environment, significant opportumties for
growth and contribution, competitive salanes, and long-term incentive compensation tied to share performance

The Group has contractual relationships with over 500 supplers and vendors who provide necessary services to the Group's business The market
for these services 1s very competitive and operational inefficiencies can anse because service provider personnel lack deep expenence In addition
to quality concerns, costs can escalate The Group is selective about whom 1t hires to provide services and constant momtoring and evaluation of
third party services will continue to be a prionty

Health, safety and the environment

Health, safety and the environment continues to be a top concern for the Group Exploration and production of o1l and natural gas 1n the Gulf of Mexico
presents many health, safety and environmental challenges As a result of the BP Macondo o1l spill during Aprid 2010 m the deep water of Gulf of Mexco,
BOEMRE regulations covening health, safety and the environment have become more stningent and contmue to evolve The Group has policies
and procedures 1n place to protect people and property from harm in areas in which 1t operates and this will continue to be a management focus
area The Group's pohcy with regards to the environment 15 to ensure that the Company understands and effectively manages the actual and
potential environmental impact of its activities The Group's operations are conducted such that the Company seeks to comply with all legal
requirements relating to health, safety and the environment in all areas where the Company carries out 1ts business Over the past year, the
Group had no matenal health, safety or environmental incidents and did not incur any fines or penalties for violating any BOEMRE regulations
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The Group's financial instruments include cash balances, trade receivables and payables, bank debt and commodity contracts on o1l and natural
gas swaps and puts, and interest rate swaps Financaal nsk management 1s more fully discussed in Note 4 “Fiancaial nsk management” of the

financaial statements

Employees

Employees’ performance 1s aligned to Group goals through an annual performance review process that 1s carned out with all employees and
through an incentive bonus programme adrministered by the Board that 1s tied in part to the Group's performance No performance bonuses

were paid to executives or management dunng the financial year ended 30 June 2010

Dividends
The Company does not have plans to pay dividends at this time

Third party indemnity provisions for Directors

During the year and continuing to date the Company has maintaned third party mndernmity insurance for its Directors and Officers

Donations

The Campany encourages and supports its management and employees in supportmg and giving of thewr trme to local chantable and other non-profit
argamsations The Group made chantable contributions of $6,000 in the year ended 30 June 2010 and $2,000 in the year ended 30 June 2008

Supplier payment policy

It 1s the Group's payment policy to pay 1ts suppliers in conformance with industry norms Trade payables are pard 1n a timely manner within

contractual terms, which 1s generally 30 to 45 days from the date an invoice 15 received

Bvents since date of statement of financial position

Details of significant post statement of financial position events are set out in Note 31 “Post-statement of financial position events” 1n the

consolidated financial statements

Directors
The Directors of the Company are set out below

Term expires at Annual
Dizector Tide Director since General Meeting m
Robert Adair Non-executive Chairman July 2007 2012
Robert Alcock Non-executive Director July 2007 2012
Stephen Fleming Non-executive Director October 2008 2011
ian Shaun Gibbs Non-executive Director December 2006 2011
Peter Hirsch Non-executive Director July 2007 2012
James Slatten Chief Operating Officer and Executive Director December 2006 2010
Howard Wilson President, Chief Executive and Executive Director December 2006 2010

At 30 June 2010 the interest of the Directors in Company shares was

Stock Appreciation Rights

Restricted Stock Urues

Ordinary Shares ("SARs" {"RSUs")
Director holdings of 5 pete vested and unvested vested and unvested
Robert Adair 6,127,660 2,510,208 1,255,104
Robert Alcock 503,191 627,552 —
Stephen Fleming — — —
tan Shaun Gibbs 706,383 627,552 —
Peter Hirsch 130,638 627,552 —
James Slatten 5,296,600 1,255,104 —
Howard Wilson 5,296,600 1,255,104 —

Additional information regarding director compensation 15 contained im Note 21 “Employees, Directors and auditor remuneration” of the

consohidated financial statements within this report
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements
The Directors are responsible for prepanng the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable laws and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have elected to prepare
the financial statements 1 accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS”) as adopted by the European Unton The finanaial
statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group, and of the profit or loss of the
Group for that penod In prepanng these financal statements, the Directors are required to

+  select sumitable accounting pohcies and then apply them consistently.
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
state whether the financial statements comply with IFRS as adopted by the European Uniton, and

prepare the finanaal statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue 1n business
(Note 2 20 “Sigmficant accounting pohcies - going concern”)

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Compames Act 2006 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevenuon and detection
of fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnity of the corporate and financal information on Leed’s website Legislation m the
Unuted Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of the financial statements and other information mncluded n annual reports may
differ from legislatron in other jurisdictions

Disclosure of information to auditor
At the date of making this report each of the Company’s Directors, who are identified above in this report, confirm the following

so far as each Director 15 aware, there 1s no relevant mformation needed by the Group's auditor in connection with prepanng their report
of which the Group’s auditor 1s unaware, and

each Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director in order to make himself aware of any relevant information
needed by the Group’s auditor in connection with prepanng their report and to establish that the Group's auditor 1s aware of that information

Auditor

Grant Thornton UK LLP (“Grant Thornton”) serves as the Company’s and Group's auditor and has expressed a willingness to continye 1n office
It accordance wath Section 489(4) of the Companies Act 2008, a resolution to reappoint Grant Thornton as auditor of the Group may be proposed
at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 20 December 2010

Approval
The report of the Directors was authonised and approved by the Board and signed on 25 November 2010 on its behalf by

ames Slatten
Chief Operating Officer
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Report of the independent auditor
to the members of Leed Petroleum PLC (Registered number 06034226)

We have audited the finanaial statements of Leed Petroleum PLC for the year ended 30 June 2010 which comprise the consohidated statement of
comprehensive mcome, the Group and Parent Company statements of changes in equity, the Group and Parent Company statements of financial
pusition, the Group and Parent Company statement of cash flows and the related notes The financal reporting framework that has been apphed

1 their preparation 15 applicable law and IFRS as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the Parent Company financial statements, as apphed

n accordance with the provisions of the Compantes Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company s members those matters we are requured to state to them i an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company’s members as a body, for cur audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ responsibilittes for the financial statements, set out on page 28, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 15 to audit the finanaal
statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s ("APB's") Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
The APB's website at www frc org uk/apb/scope/UKNP provides a description of the scope of an audit of finanoal statements

Opinion on financial statements
In our opimion

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 30 June 2010 and of the
Group’s loss for the year then ended,

the Group financial statements have been properly prepared 1n accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union,

the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared 1n accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union and as
applied 1n accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

the finannoial statements have been prepared in accordance wath the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Emphasis of matter - going concern
in forming our opuuon, which 1s not quabified m this respect, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosure made m Note 2 20 “Sigruficant
accounting policies ~ going concern” to the financial statements concerning the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern

As explained in Note 2 20, the Directors are seelang to raise additional finance to repay certam borrowings, provade working capital and progress
the development of the Group’s ol and natural gas assets These conditions, along with other matters explamed 1n Note 2 20 to the financial
statements, indicate the existence of a material uncertamty which may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern The financial statements do not include the adjustiments that would result if the Company was unable to continue as a going concern

Separate opinion in relation to IFRS

As explained m Note 2 1 “Sigmficant accounting pohcies — basis of preparation” to the Group financial statements, the Group, i addition
to complymg with its legal obligation to comply with IFRS as adopted by the European Unton, has also comphed with IFRS as 1ssued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (LASB)

In our opimon the Group financial statements comply with IFRS as 1ssued by the IASB
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Report of the independent auditor contmued
to the members of Leed Petroleum PLC (Registered number 06034226)

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinton the informatton given i the Report of the Directors for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
18 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opmion

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not heen recerved from
branches not visited by us, or

the Parent Company financial statements are not n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
certamn disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutery Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Milton Keynes

25 November 2010
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2010
Restated
2010 009
Groop Hote $000 000
Continuing operations
Revenue 8 23,228 33,823
Cost of sales
Production costs 8 (10,006) (5,982)
Depletion costs 12 (12,188) (18,368}
Gross profit 1,034 9,473
Administrative expenses 8 (15,210) (12,152}
Operating loss (14,176) (2.679)
Other gains 8,16 835 8,097
Impairment expense 5,8,11,12,30 — (25.145)
Loss on sale of assets 26 — (2,472}
Finance income 6 71 130
Finarnce costs 7 (3.644) (3.979)
Loss before taxation (16,914) (26,048)
Taxation 22,9,18,30 (1,147) 7,510
Loss for the penod from contimung operations and attributable to equity owners (18,061) (18,538)
Other comprehensive loss
Unrealised foreign currency loss, net of tax (61) —_—
Total comprehensive loss for peniod, net of tax attnibutable to equity owners (18,122) (18,538)
Loss per share {cents)
Basic 28 (35 ©7
Diluted 28 (35) ©e7n

Leed Petroleum PLC (Company number 06034226)
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for the year ended 30 June 2010
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Share Share Translation Retasned

capital premuum reserve earnings Toul
Group 5000 $000 $000 5000
Total owners' equaty at 30 June 2008 24,750 97,237 — (15.370) 106,617
Transactions with owners
- Share capital 1ssued by Company 2,428 26,705 — — 29,133
— Share 1ssue costs — (1,061) — — (1,061)
- Share-based payments — _ — 2,627 2,627
Total transactions with owners 2,428 25,644 — 2,627 30,699
Other comprehensive loss )
~ Loss for the year as onginally reported — - — (3,523} (3,523)
- Loss for the year attributable to restatement — — — (15,015 (15,015)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (restated) — — — (18,538) (18,538)
Total owners' equity at 30 June 2009 (restated) 27,178 122,881 — (31,281) 118,778
Transactions with owners
— Share capital 1ssued by Company 33,157 — — — 33,157
— Share 1ssue costs —_ — — {1,542) (1,542)
- Share-based payments — — — 2,272 2,272
Total transactions with owners 33,157 — — 730 33,887
Comprehensive loss
— Loss for the year — — — (18,061) (18,061)
- Translation reserve — — (61) — 61)
Total comprehensive loss for the year — — (61) (18,061) (18,122)
Total owners’ equity at 30 June 2010 60,335 122,881 {61) (48,612) 134,543
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Statements of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 June 2010
Share Share Tanslation Other Retatned
caprial premium 1eterve reserve earnings Towat
Coexpeny %000 5000 5000 3000 3000 000
Total owners equity at 30 June 2008 24,750 97,237 23 2,73 (2,899 121,842
Transactions with owners
- Share capital tssued 2,428 26,705 - - — 29,133
- Share 1ssue costs — (1,061) — — - (1,061)
- Expiratton of equity
instrument 1ssued with loan —_— — — {560) — (560)
- Share-based costs —_ —_ —_ 2,627 — 2,627
Total transactions with owners 2,428 25,644 — 2,067 — 30,139
Other comprehensive loss
- Translation reserve — - (23) - —_ (23)
~ Loss for the year — — - - (2,294) {2,294)
Total comprehensive loss for the year — — (23} — (2,294) 2,317
Total owners’ equity at 30 June 2009 27,178 122,881 — 4,798 (5,193) 149,664
Transactions with owners
~ Share capital 1ssued 33,157 - —_ - — 33,157
— Share 1ssue costs — — — - (1,542) (1,542)
- Share-based payments - — — 2,272 —_ 2,272
- Options termunated dunng year — —_ — (652) 652 —
Total transactions with owners 33,157 — — 1,620 (890) 33,887
Other comprehensive loss
- Translation reserve — —_ {61) — —_ {61)
- Loss for the year — — — — {2,163) (2,163)
Total comprehensive loss for the year — — (61) - (2,163) (2,229
Total owners’ equuty at 30 June 2010 60,335 122,881 (61) 6,418 (8,246) 181,327
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Group Compatry
Restated
2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008
Hote $000 $000 000 4000 $000 $000
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 23 — — — 181,033 148,802 119842
Goodwnll 10 29,005 29,005 29,005 - —_ —
Intangible exploration and evaluation assets 11 2,956 2,228 5,284 —_ — —
Notes recervable 13 - — — 1,000 1,000 1,000
Dernvative financial instruments 16 516 529 — —_ — —_
Deferred tax 22,18,30 — 1,147 377 — — 377
Property, plant and equipment 12,30 127,030 123,657 138,563 — — —
159,507 156,566 173,229 182,033 149,802 121,219
Current assets
Trade and other recervables 13 5,662 10,718 10,068 24 12 170
Denvative finanaal instruments 16 1,019 2,314 —_ — — —_
Cash and cash equivalents 20 10,812 4,482 10,317 255 269 858
17,493 17,514 20,385 279 281 1,026
Liabilities
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 14 8,615 4421 15,263 985 419 403
Other finance obligations 15 4 3,264 5 — — —
Denvative financial instruments 16 837 310 2,849 — — —
Current portion of borrowings 15 1,500 - — — — —
10,956 7.985 18,117 985 419 403
Net current assets (habilities) 6,537 9,519 2,268 {706) {138) 623
Non-current habthities
Borrowings 15 25,000 40,815 52,531 — — -
Derwative financal instruments 16 22 904 2,980 —_ — -
Decommissioning cbhigation 17 6,479 5,588 6,629 —_ _ —
Deferred tax 22,1830 — — 6,740 —_ — —
31,501 47,307 68,880 — — —
Net assets 134,543 118,778 106,617 181,327 149,664 121,842
Owmers’ equaty
Ordinary Share Capital 19 60,335 27,178 24,750 60,335 27,178 24,750
Share premium 122,881 122,881 97,237 122,881 122,881 97,237
Translation reserve (61) —_ —_ (61) —_ 23
Other reserve — — —_— 6,418 4,798 2,731
Retamned earnings (48,612) (31,281) (15370) (8,246) (5,193} (2,899)
Total owners’ equity 134,543 118,778 106,617 181,327 149,664 121,842
The financial statements on pages 31 to 66 were authorised and approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on 25 November 2010 on its
behalf by
James Slatten
Bxecutive Director

Company number 06034226
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Group Comspany
2010 2009 2010 2009
Note $000 $000 3000 $000
Net cash flows from operating actiities 20 9,366 17,915 (393} (531)
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital contnbution to subsidiary 23 — — (31,115) (28,162)
Purchase of denvative contracts, net of expired positions (16) {1,035) — —
Proceeds from sale of assets — 15,852 — —
Purchase of mtangible assets {728) (758 - —
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (13,113} (53,699) — —
Interest recewved (paid) 71 130 (53) 66
Net cash used 1n investing activities (13,786) (39,510} {31,168) (28,096)
Cash flows from finanang activities
Net proceeds from issue of Ordinary Shares 19 31,615 28,01 21,615 28,072
Interest and other financing costs paid (3,037} (3,570) — —
Proceeds from other financing obligations - 4,657 — —
Pninaipal payments of other financing obligations (3,260) {1,399 — —
Borrowings raised —_— 13,000 _ —
Borrowings repaid 15 (14,500) (25,000) — —
Net cash from financing activities 10,818 15,760 31,615 28,072
Net increase (decrease) 1n cash and cash equivalents 6,398 (5,835) 54 (555)
Exchange differences in cash and cash equivalents (68) — (68) 32
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 4,482 10,317 269 856
Cash and cash equivalents at end of penod 20 10,812 4,482 255 269




Leed Petroleum PLC www leedpetroleum com
3 6 annual report and accounts 2010

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2010

1. General information
Leed Petroleurn PLC (LDP LN 1s a publicly Listed company regastered in the Unated Kingdom The address of its registered office 1s 110 Cannon Street,
London, EC4N 6AR

The Leed Petroleum PLC Group (collectively, "Leed” or the “Group®) compnses one operating segment which acquires, explores, develops, produces
and operates o)l and natural gas properues offshore and onshore of the Guif Coast region of the United States At 30 June 2010, Leed owned
mineral interests i 17 blocks located in federal waters offshore of the Louisiana coasthne, one onshore field in Lowsiana and a small interest
in a gas processing plant and a fractionation plant located onshore i Lowsiana

The Company’s functional currency is the Pound Sterhing, As substantially all of the Group’s actwity and finanaal transactions occur m the United States,
US Dollars 1s used as a presentation currency for both the Group and the Parent Company At 30 June 2010 and 2009, the exchange rate of the
US Dollar to the Pound Sterling was $0 6635 and $0 6053, respectively Foreign operations are consolidated in accordance with the pohcies set
outin Note 2 11 “Sigmificant accounting policies - foreign currencies” below

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The Group and Parent Company financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with EU adopted IFRS, and International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Comnnttee ('IFRIC”) mnterpretations All accounting standards and interpretations 1ssued by the International
Accounting Standards Beard and the IFRIC effective for the penods covered by these financial statements have been apphed

The financial statements for the peniod ended and as at 30 June 2003 have been restated to reflect the change in the apphcation of an accounting
policy related to :dentification of cash generating units for smpairment testing purposes The financial statements as at and for the period ended
30 June 30 2008 were not affected by thus restatement In accordance with IAS 1 “Presentation of financial statements”, the statemnent of financial
position as at 30 June 2008 1s included herein for comparative purposes only {Note 30 “Restatement of prior penod™)

The Group reports 1ts proportional interests 1n joint o1l and natural gas exploration, development, and preduction activities A summary of the
significant Group accounting pohaes adopted in the preparation of the financial statements 1s set out below These policies have been consistently
apphed to all the penods presented, unless otherwise stated

The preparation of financial statements in conformuty with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions and for management to exercise
1ts judgement 1n the process of applying the Group’s accounting pohaes Critical judgements and key estimates and assumptions are disclosed m
Note 3 "Cntical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertamty” below The following new standards and amendments to
standards are applicable for the finanoal year commencing 1 July 2009

IAS 1 “Presentation of Financaial Statements”

The Group applies revised IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statemnents”, which became effective for the Group as of 1 July 2009 As a result,
the Group presents in the statement of changes 1n equuty all owner changes m equity, whereas all non-owner changes in equity are presented

1n the consohdated statement of comprehensive mcome This presentation has been appled within these financial statements In accordance
with IAS 1, the Group has elected to present the combined consolidated statement of income and the statement of comprehensive income
Comparative information has been re-presented so that 1t alse 1s in conformity with the revised standard Since the change in accounting policy
only impacts presentation aspects, there 1s no impact on earnngs per share

IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”

IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” replaces 1AS 14 “Segment Reporting” The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the Group’s Board
of Directors The Board of Directors reviews the Group's internal reporting n order to assess performance and allocate resources The information
provided to the chief operating decision maker 1s measured in a manner which 1s consistent with the finanaal statements and management

has determined the Group has one operating segment, the “exploration and production” segment, based on these reports and other factors

The Group’s exploration and production segment consists of the acquisition, exploration, development, production and operation of ml and
natural gas properties in the Gulf Coast region of the United States and comprises multiple cash generating units ("CGUs™ The Group’s CGUs
within its exploration and production segment are generally classified at the field level, which 15 based on the physical location of the asset and
the mndependence of cash mflows from other assets within the segment The exploration and production segment denves all of 1ts revenues from
external customers (Note 5 “Operating segments”)

The adoption of IFRS 8 did not result in changes to the statement of financial position at 30 June 2008 Accordingly, the statement of Ainancial
position at 30 June 2008 has not been included 1n these financal statements

1AS 23 “Borrowing Costs”

The Group early adopted 1AS 23 "Borrowng Costs™ for the financial year beginnung 1 July 2008, which 1s mandatory for financial years beginning
on or after 1 January 2009 In accordance with IAS 23, the Group capitalises borrowing costs that are directly attnibutable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a quahifying asset as part of the cost of that asset (Note 2 16 “Significant accounting pohcies - borrowing and other
finance costs™)
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2. Significant accounting polides continued

2.1 Bagsis of preparation continued

Other new accounting standards and interpretations

The Company has reviewed additional new standards and interpretations currently 1n issue but not effective as of 30 June 2010 and determined
that none of these new standards and interpretations will have significant impact on reported results Those new standards and interpretations
include IFRS 9 "Financial instruments”, IFRS 24 (revised 2009) “related party disclosures™, and “Group cash-settled share-based payment
transactions - amendment to IFRS 27

2,2 Basis of consolidation
The consohdated financial statements incorporate the results, assets, habiities and cash flows of the Company and each of its subsidianes
for the years ended 30 June 2010 and 2009, respectively

Subsidianes are entiuies controlled by Leed Petroleum PLC Controlis deemed to exast when Leed Petroleum PLC has the power, directly
or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating pohicies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activibies The results of subsidiaries
are included 1n the consohdated financial statements from the date control commences until the date that control ceases

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidianies to bring the accounting policies used 1n ine with those
used by Leed Petroleum PLC

Unless there is an indication of impairment, mtra group balances and transactions are ehminated on consolidation

2.3 Business combinations

Merger accounting nvolving entities under common control 1s outside the scope of IFRS 3 "Business combinations™ In applymg LAS 8 “"Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors,” to determine an appropnate accounting pohcy, the Group follows UK GAAP for business
combimations The purchase method 1s apphed to other combinations under the scope of IFRS 3 None of the aforementioned 1tems are relevant
to these financial statements

2 4 Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidianes represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the 1dentifiable
net assets of the acquired subsidiary Goodwill 1s not amortised, but tested at least annually for impairment, and carned at cost less accumulated
mparrment losses (Note 2 17 “Significant accountmg pohicies - impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangble assets”)

2 5 Oil and natural gas assets
The Group follows the successful efforts method of accounting for 1ts ail and natural gas properties The Group’s interests 1 o1l and natural gas
explotation and production joint ventures are proportionately consolidated

Exploration and evaluation (“E&E") assets

E&E assets compnse the cost of nghts to extract mnerals ("leases”} for fields with no known proven oil and/or natural gas reserves and are held at cost
unless impared Each E&E asset 1s reviewed on an annual basis to confirm that dnlling actiity 1s planned and that 1t 15 not impared Geological and
geophysical costs pertaining to E&E assets are expensed as incurred Other direct costs related to the pursuit of an B&E asset are capitahised 15, through
geological and geophysical studies, proven commercial reserves are discovered, the cost of the E&E asset 15 transferred to property, plant and equipment
Otherwise, such costs are expensed 1n the penod 1t 1s ascertained that there are no commeraal reserves Imibal terms for offshore leases 1n the federal
waters of the Gulf of Mexico are five years, but are indefinite if there 15 production occurmng in commeraial quanaoties Initial terms for leases onshore
usually range from three to five years and, in some cases, inchide optional lease extensions from one to five years Onshore leases or unitised portions
of onshore leases also continue indefinitely with production in commeraal quantitres Other direct costs related to the pursuit of a potental lease are
capitalised as part of the cost of the E&E asser Once 1t 1s decided a lease will not oz cannot be obtamed, such pursust costs are expensed

The costs that are directly associated with an exploration well are capitalised as an intangible asset until the dnlling of the well 1s complete and the
results have been evaluated These costs mchude the use of matenals and fuel, directly related employee remuneration, ng costs and payments made
to contractors As ciscussed above and in Note 2 16 “Sigmficant accounting pohaes - borrowing and other finance costs™, as of 1 July 2008 the Group
commenced the caprtalisation of borrowing costs related to its construction and dnlhng projects If it 1s found that hydrocarbons are not present,
the exploration expenditure 15 wnitten off 1f hydrocarbons are discovered and are hikely to be capable of commernial development, subject to further
apprasal activity, which may mclude the drilling of further wells (exploration or exploratory type test wells), the costs continue to be carned as an
asset All such carnied costs are subject to techrucal, commercial and management review at least once a year to confirm the continued intent to
develop or otherwise extract value from the well If it 1s found that value can no longer be extracted, the costs are written off When proved reserves
of o1l and natural gas are determined and development 15 sanctioned, the relevant expenditure 15 transferred to property, plant and equipment

Development expenditures

Expenditure on the construction, instailation or completion of mmfrastructure facbties such as platforms, prpelines and the dnlling of development wells,
incleding unsuccessful development or delmeation wells, 15 capitalised within property, plant and equipment With the early adoption of 1AS 23
“Borrowing Costs (revised 2007)" as of July 2008, borrowmg costs attnbutable to development expenditure are mcluded with the amount capitalised
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Notes to the financial statements conunued
for the year ended 30 June 2010

2. Significant accounting policies conunued

2 6 Amortisation and depletfon of tangible oil/gas assets

The Group depletes the costs of its 01l and natural gas assets on a field by field basis using the unit of production method Assets ansing from the
recording of a decommussioning cbhgation are amortised as described 1n Note 2 9 "Significant accounting pobicies - decommussioning obligation”

2.7 Property, plant and equipment - other non-oil/gas assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated deprecration and any impairment losses Cost compnses the purchase pnice
of property, plant and equipment tagether with any directly attnbutable costs Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying valve or
recogmsed as a separate asset, when 1t is probable that future economic benefits associated with the itemn will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably All other costs are charged to profit and loss when incurred

Depreciation cornmences when an asset 1s available for use and 1s charged s0 as to write off the depreciable amount of assets other than land
to their residual values, over their estimated useful lives, using a method that reflects the pattern i which the assets’ future economic benefits
are expected to be consumed by the Group

Depreciation 1s charged i equal annual instalments as follows
Leasehold improvements over the term of the lease
Office equipment 3-5 years

Fuxtures and fittings Up to 7 years

Methods of depreciation, residual values and useful hives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropnate, at each statement of financial position date Assets
held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of their expected useful ives or the term of the relevant iease, when there 1s no reasonable
certainty that title will be obtained at the end of the lease term The gam or loss ansing from the disposal or retirement of an 1tem of property, plant and
equpment 1s determuned as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, and 1s included i profit and loss

2 8 Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax

Current tax

Tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year and 1s calculated using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the statement

of financal position date Taxable profit differs from accounting profit either because 1tems are taxable or deductible in periods different to those
in which they are recogmsed 1n the accounts or because they are never taxable or deductible

Deferred tax

Deferred tax on temporary differences at the statement of financial position date between the tax bases of assets and liabilittes and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes 15 accounted for using the balance sheet hability method, which assumes that such amounts wall be expended
or recovered 1n future peniods (Note 18 “Deferred tax™)

Using the balance sheet habihty method, deferred tax habihties are recogrused in full for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are
recogrused to the extent that 1t 18 probable that taxable profits will be avatlable against which deductible temporary differences can be utiised Deferred
tax assets for share-based payments are re-calculated at each statement of financial position date based on the closmg price of the Company's share price
However, if the deferred tax asset or hability anses from the itial recognition of goodwill or the iritial recognition of an asset or babihty m a transaction
other than a busmess combmation that at the tme of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit, it 1s not recogrused.

Deferred taxation 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the asset 15 reahsed or the hability settled based on tax rates and
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial positon date No provision 1s made for deferred tax on the unrermtted earnings
of foreign subsidiaries because such remittances are not probable as the Group’s policy 1s to remnvest profits te fund growth m the US Deferred
tax assets and habilities are offset only when there 15 a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax amounts and when they relate to the same
tax authonty and the Group intends to settle 1ts current tax amounts on a net basis Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit and loss
except when they relate to 1tems recogmised directly 1n equity, when they are similarly taken to equity

2.9 Decommissioning obligation

The Group recognises the present value of decommisstoning abligations in the financial staternents in the penod in which the obligation anses
Upon mmitial recogmition of the hability, an asset retirement cost 1s capitalised by increasing the carrying amount of the long lived asset by the
same amount as the hability In periods subsequent to iutial measurement, the capitahsed asset retirement cost 1s allocated to depreciation/
amortisation expense using the straight line basis over the asset’s useful ife Changes in the hability for decommussions are recogrused for the
passage of time by charges to accretion expense and classified as finance costs i profit and loss Annually, the Group reassesses the hability in
accordance with IFRIC 1 “Changes in Existing Decommissionng, Restoration and Similar Liabilities”, the cost of the applicable asset to which
the hability relates 15 offset by the amount of the adjustment to the habibty If the obhigation 1s ulumately settled for other than the carrying
amount, then a gain or loss 1s recognised upon settlement




www leedpetroleum com Leed Petroleam PLC
annual report and accounts 2010 3 9

2. Significant accounting policies continued

2.10 Revenue

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration recerved or receivable and represents the amounts recewvable for goods provided in
the normal course of business, net of all related discounts and sales tax Revenue from the Group's crude oil, natural gas and natural gas hquids
preduction 1s recogmised on the date sold, which comncides with physical dehivery The Group follows the net method of accounting for royaltues,
the royalty owner's share of sales or production does not appear in profit loss Gas processing fees are recogmsed on the date the physical gas
PTOCessSINg occurs

2 11 Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate raling at the date of each transaction Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabihities are retranslated using the exchange rates at the statement of financial position date Gains and losses ansing from changes n exchange
rates after the date of the transaction are recogmsed in profit and loss Non-monetary assets and habihities that are measured i terms of histoncal
cost 1n a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the oniginal transacuon

In the Group and Company financial statements, the net assets of the Company are translated mnto 1ts presentation currency at the rate of
exchange at the statement of financial positien date Income and expense items are translated at the date of the transaction The resultung
exchange differences are recognised 1n equaty and included 1n translation reserve

2.12 Finance Jeases
Leases are classtfied as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership to the Group
All other leases are classified as operating leases

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are recognised as assets in the statement of financal positton at their fair values or,
1f lower, at the present value of the minimurm lease payments, both determuned at the nception of the lease The corresponding obhgation 1s
recorded as amounts payable under finance leases The interest element of leasing payments represents a constant proportion of the capital
balance outstanding and 15 charged to profit and loss over the penod of the lease

2.13 Operating leases
The costs of all operating leases are charged aganst operating profit on a straight line basis at existing rental levels Incentives to sign operating
leases are recogrused 1n profit and loss in equal instalments over the term of the lease

2.14 Financial instruments

The Group classifies its financial mstrument assets, or ther component parts, on mmitial recognition into two categonies a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss, or loans and recewables Finanaal instrument babibities are classified as erther a financial habihity at fair value through
profit or loss, or as another finanaial habiity Finanaal assets and finanaal babihties are recogmised on the Group's statement of financial position
when the Group becomes party to the contractual provistons of the mstrument The partcular recogmition and measurement methods adopted
for trade and other recervables, bank and cash, trade and other payables, borrowings and denvatives are disclosed below

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash 1n hand and cash at bank, these financial mstruments are classified with loans and recevables

Trade and other recewvables

Trade and other recevables are measured utially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective mterest rate method

These finanoal instruments are categonsed with loans and recervables The receivables do not carry interest, the carrying value of the recervables,

as presented, 35 reduced by appropnate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts A provision for impairment of trade recevables is estabhished
when there 1s emdence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms of these recewvables The amount
of the provision 15 the difference between the carrying value and the present value of estimated future <ash flows, discounted using the effective
mterest rate method Impairment losses are recogmised 1n profit and loss

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are measured 1mitially at farr value and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method
These financial instruments are categonsed with other financial habilities

Borrowings and other finance obhgations

Borrowings and other finance obhigations are recognised imitially at the fair vahue of proceeds received, net of transaction costs Subsequent
measurement 15 at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method (Borrowang and other finance costs are discussed at Note 2 16
“Significant accounting policies - borrowing and other financing costs” on page 40) Thece finanoial instruments are categonised with other
financial habilines

Borrowings and other finance obligations are classified as current habilities unless the Group has an unconditional nght to defer settlement
of the hability for at least twelve months after the statement of financial position date
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2. Significant accounting policies continued

2.14 Financlal instruments continued

Denvative contracts

The Company's denvative contracts consist of commodity contracts and interest rate swaps, which are carred at fair value Changes in the fair
value of such contracts are recognised n profit and loss as they anse The Company has elected to not to quahfy for hedge accounting treatment

Equity instruments
An equity instrument 15 any contract that evidences a residual interest 1n the assets of the Group after deducting all its habilities Equuty
mstruments 1ssued by the Company are recorded at the amount of proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs

Fair value determination i
The Group estabhishes fair value by utibsing valuation technigues, including the use of informatton from recent arm'’s length market transactions

between knowledgeable willing parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of similar instruments, and discounted cash flow analysis

The vatuation techmque used incorporates factors that market participants would consider in setting a price and 1s consistent with accepted '
economic methodologes for pnicing financial instruments

Embedded denvative

The fair value of an option granted to a provider of finance has been determuned based on the difference between the rate of (higher) interest
charged by the bank on those loans with and without the option attached The additional interest that would have been charged 1s charged to
finance cost 1n profit and loss, with the offset being a credit to equity

2 15 Dividends
Final dvidends are recogmsed as a ability in the period 1n which they are approved by the Company's shareholders Interim dividends are
recognised when they are paid

2 16 Borrowing and other finance costs

Borrowing and finance charges, including any premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are generally recogmsed
n profit and loss as incurred Commencing 1 July 2008 with the early adoption of IAS 23 {revised 2007), borrowing costs incurred dunng the
construction period and attnbutable to constructed assets are caprtahised as a part of the asset The transitional provisions of [AS 23 (revised 2007)
allow capitalisation of interest only on projects that commenced 1n the period the standard 1s adopted The Company early adopted 1AS 23 and
capitalised $21,000 and $119,000 for the penods ended 30 June 2010 and 2009, respectively The average borrowing rate was 4 6% for the
period ended 30 June 2010 and 4 9% for the penod ended 30 June 2009

2.17 Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
At each statement of finanaial position date, the Group assesses whether there 15 any indication that its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets have been impaired

Exploration and evaluation assets

Impairment testing for the Group’s E&E assets are conducted on an asset-by-asset level on an annual basis or when arcumstances anse which
indicate that the carrying value of an E&E asset may be impawred E&E assets are also tested for impairment when reclassified to property, plant
and equipment If any such indicatton exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated 11 order to deterrune the extent of the impairment,
if any

Field cash generating umts

Development costs pertaining to the Group’s oil and natural gas assets classified as property, plant and equipment are grouped by individual
CGUs ("Field CGUs") for mpairment testing purposes At 30 June 2010, each Field CGU was comprnised of a grouping of wells wathin a distinct
geographical location which ¢ontain proven and probable o1 and narural gas reserves, but no mterconnected cash mflows wath other fields In the
prior annual report for the year ended 30 June 2009, the Group classified all of its o1l and natural gas wells with proven and probable reserves
as one operating segment and one CGU The change 1n apphcation of the policy year-on-year was a result of re-examining the assets within the
Group's exploration and production operating segment and determining that components (multiple CGUs) with separately identifiable cash
nflows existed Since the change 1n application of policy provides more relevant information which 15 also rehable, the change was adopted
(Note 30 "Restatement of prior peniod”)

The recoverable amount of a Field CGU 15 the higher of 1ts fair value less costs to sell or s value 1n use The vahte in use 15 the present value of
the future cash flows expected to be denived from the Field CGU Thus present value 15 discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and of the risks specific to the asset, for which future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted If the
recoverable amount of the Field CGU 1s less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the Field CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount
and an impairment loss 1s recognused If an impairment loss subsequently reverses because of changing circumstances, the carrying amount of the
Field CGU 15 increased to the revised estimate of 1ts recoverable amount, but limited to the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recogrused 1n prior years A reversat of an impatrment loss 1s recogrused in profit and loss
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2. Significant accounting policies continued

2.17 Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets continued

Goodwill

Goodwill 1s tested for inpasrment at the operating segment level at least annually and whenever there 1s an indication the asset may be impaired
Impairment losses on goodwill are not subsequently reversed in accordance with IFRS

2 18 Share-based payments

The Group has 1ssued Stock Appreciation Rights ("SARs") and Restnicted Stock Uruts (*RSUs™) of the Company's stock as addstional compensation
to 1ts Directors, executives, management and other employees with the offset being a share-based cost credit to equity The Company has the chowce
of settling these armounts with cash or by tsswing stock The share-based payments are accounted for as equity settled share-based payments as st
1s expected the amounts will be settled by the 1ssuance of Company stock Equity settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the
date of grant as determined by an independent appraiser with assumptions that the Directors consider as reasonable The fair value 15 expensed
on a straight line basis over the vesting period, which 1s based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions

2.19 Reserves of equity

The Group and Company's reserves of equity include a translation reserve The translation reserve ts the offsetting account for the adjustment
of the Company’s accounts from Its functional currency (the Pound Sterhing) to the presentation currency {the US Dollar) In addition to the
foregoing, the Company’s reserves of equuty also mnclude an other reserve The other reserve 1s the offsetting account for share-based payments

2.20 Going concern
The Group's busmess actrnities, together with factors bikely to affect its future developments, performance and finanaal position are set gut in the Charman's
staternent on page 2 and the Report of the Director’s on page 21 Financial nsks to the Company are set out in Note 4 “Financial Risk Management”

During the past finanaial year, the Group’s financial performance was affected by adverse production performance 1ssues In the Bugene Island
field, the Eugene Island 183 A-8 well continued to decline at a steady rate, but not in sufficient quantity to obtamn regulatory approval for the
recompletion into the more prolific T-1 sand Two other wells in the field, the Eugene Island 183 A-6 and Eugene Island 183 A-7, each failed

to produce at anticipated production levels, pnncipally due to sand control 1ssues, and were not producing at period end The Group’s Main Pass
64/65 field also experienced signtficant downtime during the year ended 30 June 2010 due to ongomg pipehine repair 1ssues and was shut in

at penod end The aforementioned items were the primary contnibutors to a 31% decrease in year-on-year revenues, resutting n a $1 0 mallion
negative earmings before interest, taxes, depreciation, depletion, amortisation, exploration costs and impairments (“EBITDAX") for the 2010
financial year, as compared to positive $23 9 milhon EBITDAX for the 2009 financial year

The Group's banking facihity s subject to financial covenants and other conditions which the Group monitors regularly These covenants and
conditions are sensitive to changes in EBITDAX, interest rates, commodity prices, production levels, net assets and estimated o1l and natural
gas reserves The Group's abilty to comply with such ¢ovenants and conditions in future penods 1s a key element in the ability of the Group to
continue as a gong concern During June 2010, the Group disclosed certan defaults on the credit facility to its bank, UmCredit Bank AG, that
were projected to exst at the 30 June 2010 review date The defaults related to EBITDAX ratios pertaining ta the period ended 30 June 2010 that
were projected to be deficent at peniod end, principally due to ol and natural gas production performance 1ssues incurred during the aforementioned
twelve month penod that negatively affected EBITDAX Following discussions with UniCredit Bank AG, the Group agreed to an interest rate
wncrease of 2% on its credit facility effectve 15 June 201¢ m exchange for warving the projected defaults to ensure the Group would be 1n full
compliance with the terms and conditions of 1ts banking facihities at 30 June 2010 Since the default provisions are reviewed every six months
and are based on actual results from the prior twelve month peniod, the Group expects to seek a similar waiver at the next measurement date,
which 1s 31 December 2010 During November 2010, the Group reached an agreement wath the Group’s bank whereby the Group would make
an additional pnncipal payment of $12 0 nullion on or before 31 March 2011 and the interest rate on 1ts credit facility would mcrease by 1%
effectve 15 December 2010 1n return for waving certain conditions of default that may exast at the 31 December 2010 measurement date

As of the date of this report the Group 15 explonng several alternatives including divestmg some or all of its o1l and natural gas assets in order

to raise $12 O mulhon or rove 1n order to pay off some or all of its bank borrowings prior to 31 March 2011 Additional alternatives under
consideration include, but are not imited to, securing a new bank credit facidity and/or other potential transactions, such as a merger with
another company In anticipation of executing one or a combination of the aforementioned alternatives duning the 2011 financial year and the
accompanying measurement uncertainty thereof, the Company wrote off 1ts pertod end net deferred tax balances of $7 2 mullion for the penod
ended 30 June 2010 (Note 18 “Deferred tax™) The Group 1s uncertain of the bank’s stance post 31 March 2011 and this could therefore represent
a sigmificant nisk to the Group
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2. Significant accounting policies continued

2 20 Going concern continued

The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts (including selected sensitivities) for the Company covering a twelve month perod from the
authorsation of these financial statements The cash flow forecasts reflect the Company's plan for the comung year, including expected net
proceeds from divestitures, projected production rates, commodity prices, capital expenditure levels, pnincipal payments, interest rates and
expected comphance with loan covenants Based on these assumptions, which the Board behieves are reasonable, these cash flow forecasts show
that the Group should have sufficient bquidity to continue as a going concern  Nevertheless, possible adverse future events or circumstances are
beyond the control of the Company and could senously influence the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern Moreover, the regulatory
environment in the Gulf of Mexico post the BP o1} spill at Macondo 15 1 Aux and some regulatory changes under consideration m the US Congress
could impenl the Company's business model Clearly, 1t 1s impossible to predict the regulatory changes that may come about on account of
governmental imtiatives

Future growth of the Group during the next twelve months and beyond 1s heavily dependent upon the Group's ability to raise enough capital
to continue the development of 1ts undeveloped o1l and natural gas reserve portfohio, which represents approximately 78% of 1ts o1l and natural
gas reserves calculated on a barrels of 01l equivalent (“BOE") basis at 1 July 2020 The cash flow forecasts assume the Group will be successful
in raising sufficent capital to further develop these o1l and natural gas reserves

The Directors’ assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going concern involves making a judgement about inherently uncertan future
outcomes of events and conditions based upon available information at the time of assessment Subsequent events and additional information
may result in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made The Directors have concluded
that the combination of these circumstances represents a matenal uncertainty that casts significant doubt upon the Group's abibity to continue
as a going concern and that, therefore, the Group may be unable to realise 1ts assets and discharge 1ts habilities 1n the normal course of business
Nevertheless, after making enquines and considenng the uncertainties descnibed above, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources to continue 1n operational eustence for the foreseeable future For these reasons, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting 1n preparing the annual finanaal statements

3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Key assumptions concerming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant nsk of causing a matenal
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and babilities are as follows

3 1 Estimated oil and natural gas reserves

At least annually the Group obtams an independent audit of its ol and natural gas reserves The total amount of o1l and natural gas reservesis a
cntical estimate for the purpose of determining the carrying value of ol and natural gas assets, the depletion rate utiising the unit of production
method, estimated future production rates, net present value of future cash flows utilised for impairment testing purposes and credit available
under the Company s bank credst faciity Due to numerous assumptions, including commodity prices, volumetric decline curves, operating costs
capital expenditures and other factors, actual results could vary matenally from estimates contained within the reserve report prepared by the
independent reserve auditor

3.2 Fair value of ofl and natural gas derivatives

The Group obtams valuations of 1ts o1l and natural gas commodity contracts from the counterparties to the contracts ‘The Group then reviews
those valuations for reasonableness using published market information for similar contracts and the expertise of an independent consultant
The value of the denvatives 15 a cnitical estimate 1n determining the financial position of the Group {Note 16 "Financial instruments”)

3.3 Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired 1n a business combination, including leases and exploration assets, are recogmsed when they are identifiable or anse
from contractual or other legal nghts and their fair value can be rebably measured Fair value 13 estimated using nsk adjusted future cash flows
Significant assumptions are made in estimating future cash flows about future events, including future market conditions and future growth
rates Changes in these assumptions could affect farr values

3.4 Decommissioning obligation

Provisions for asset retrement obhgations are recogmsed when management 1s satisfied that an outflow of econormic benefits 1s probable and
a reliable estimate can be made of the obhigation and when a present obligation exists The Group obtains an independent fair market valuation
of the obligation at the ime an affected asset 1s placed 1n sernce The carrying amount of the asset that has such a retirement obligation and
the Liabihity related to the future obligation to decommussion the asset, and the resulting expense from the amortisation of the added cost of
the asset and atcretion of the hability are significant estimates in the Group's accounts
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3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

3.5 Treatment of overriding royalty interests (ORRIs)

Overnding royalty interests ("ORRIs") may be granted to third part:es An ORRI 1s an immovable property nght {akin to a real nght m a common
law junsdiction) As an immovable property nght, an ORRI has the same legal standing as does a working interest m a mineral lease or an interest
m land

Scouting Agreement with Byron Energy Pty, Ltd (“Byron™)

In December 2005, the Group granted Byron a contractual right to receive ORRIs of 2% n certain properties in exchange for scouting services
Under terms of the agreement (the "scouting agreement”), Byron was to be granted a 2% ORRI relative to the Group’s ownership interest at the
time when the Group acquired its working interests m each relevant property under terms of the scouting agreement Byron had earned the nght
to recewve these ORRIs by virtue of the scouting services whach they had performed The Group considers that Byron holds 2 2% ORRI interest in
the property, with the remaining 98% share, less other royalty interests, representing the asset of the Group The scouting agreement provides
that Byron will receive each ORRI prior to the commencement of production Once these properties reach production, any cash received by the
Group 1n relation to Byron's ORRIs will not be regarded as revenue, as the Group reports only its proportional interests in its o1l and natural gas
exploration, development, and production activities The Group would recogmise a finanaal habihity for any funds recerved on behalf of Byron,
and that hability would then be extinguished on a short-term basis by remutting the funds to Byron Payments which may be made in the future
n respect of future production would not be considered to be a financial hability Under further terms of the scouting agreement, the Group also
granted a wnitten option to Byron which gives Byron the option to purchase up to 25% of the Group’s working Interest in certain fields The exercise
of this option would involve Byren paying a pro-rata exercise price equivalent to the Group's onginal purchase price plus all subsequent costs
mcurred with respect to the property, together with the relinguishment of the 2% ORRI to the Group The exercise date commences upon notice
from the Group that it 15 preparing to spud a well and expires on the earlier of 30 business days or the day before the expected spud date The option
represents a financial hability In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of this finanoal hability 15 not significant to the financial statements
(Note 26 "Related party transactions™

4. Financial risk management
The Group's business activities expose 1t to a variety of financial nisks that include 01l and natural gas price nisk, hquidity nsk, interest rate nisk,
credit nsk and currency nsk

4.1 Liquidity risk

Ligwdity nsk 1s the nisk ansing from the Group not being able to meet its obhgations The Group manages its hquidity needs by monitonng
scheduled debt servicing payments for its borrowings as well as forecast cash flows and mflows due in day-to-day business The Group's abjective
15 to maintain cash and cash equivalents to meet 1ts hquidity requirements for a runimum of 30 days

The Group finances its operations through a combination of bank borrowings, finance leases and cash generated from operations Besides
operations, the Group'’s principal source of funding 1s bank borrowings secured by property assets Liquidity 1s maintained through commutted
bank credit facilities (Note 15 "Borrowings™)

The Group currently satisfies its financial responsibility requirements under the Ot Pollution Act of 1990, as amended, through the use of msurance
Asa result of the BP o1l spill at its Macondo prospect 1n the deep water of the Gulf of Mexico, legislative initiatves are currently under consideration
that may increase the level of responsibility the Group would be required to demonstrate If such legislative initiatives are enacted, the Company
would hkely experience adverse effects

There 15 a nisk the Group may not be able to obtain future surety bonding as required by the Bureau of Ocean Energy Management, Regulanion
and Enforcement ("BOEMRE") for Gulf of Mexaco operators and lessees (zelated to future decommissioning abhgations) In the event the
Company's operating subsidiary does not quahfy for future surety bonding, it may have to post cash collateral before obtaining BOEMRE
approval of future operations

There 15 a nisk that the Group may be called upon by the surety provider which has issued surety bonds related to expected future decomnussioning
actvities to the US Department of the Intenor to collateralise previously issued surety bonds pursuant to the agreement of mdemmity between
the parties
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4 Finandal risk management continued

4 1 Liguidity risk continued

A summary of the Group’s matunties for 1ts habilities {excluding derivative financial instruments, decommssioning obhgations and deferred
taxes) folows

Group
Current Current Hon current Mon-current
wittnn six months AZ 1o twetve months one to five yeary over five years
Marturities 3000 $00¢ 000 $000
30 June 2010
Borrowings 500 1,000 25,000 —_
Trade and other payables 8,615 — — —
Other finance obhgations 4 _ -— —_
9,119 1,000 25,000 —
30 June 2009
Borrowings — — 40,815 —
Trade and other payables 4,421 — - —
Other finance obligations 2,614 650 - —
7,035 650 40,815 —
4.2 Price risk

Volatibty of o1l and natural gas prices can have considerable impact on the Group's results To mitigate such nisks, the Group regularly enters
into o1l and natural gas commodity denvative contracts Currently, the Group has a number of such contracts in place as a part of the credit
facihity with 1ts pnmary banker (Note 16 “Financial instruments™)

4.3 Credit risk

Currently, the Company receives payment from five entities for most of 1ts revenue The revenue 1s derived from the Company’s pro-rata share
of the production of 1], natural gas, and natural gas hquids from 1ts producing properties and from gas plant processing fees pertaiming to a gas
plant where the Company holds a minonty interest The Gulf Coast area of the Umited States has an extensive, well maintained infrastructure
and market for preducers with many potential buyers (Note 13 “Trade and other recervables”)

4.4 Carrency risk
The Company 1s exposed to currency nsk with the Pound Sterhing relative to mamtaining the Company’s United Kingdom domicile That cost
15 a miumal portion of the Company's overall operations and as such 1t 1s not matenal Accordingly, the Group does not hedge this nsk

4.5 Interest rate risk
The Company 15 exposed to a cash flow interest rate nisk on bank borrowings, which are arranged at floating rates As part of the credit fachty with
1ts primary banker, the Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge a portion of 1ts exposure to interest rate fluctuations (Note 16 “Financial instruments™)

4.6 Capital maintenance

The Board of Directors’ pelicy with regards to capital maintenance includes an objective to maimtain a strong capital base consisting of appropnate
borrowings that comply with its credst facshity 1 order to maintam investor and creditor confidence and sustain future development of the busmess
The Group endeavours to maintain a capital structure that will maximise shareholder value while employing only a level of debt that the Board
of Directors considers prudent for an o1l and natural gas company of the Group's size and on terms that the Board of Directors believes to be
reasonable after talung into account the Group's capital needs and considening other alternatives The Board of Directors directs and monitors
the allocation of cash resources against projects to maximise the return on asset value within the Group Day-to-day working capital requurements
and medium-term funding requirements are managed through use of mternally generated funds and the Group's bank facihty Penodically,
the Board of Directors will consider raising additional equity when the Group has access to opportunities, which o the opinion of the Board
of Directors will increase shareholder value if acted upon The Board of Directors also determunes the timing and level of diwidends to
Ordinary Shareholders with the objective of maxamusing shareholder value

4 7 Treasury management

Daily reports are generated showing the volumes of o1t and natural gas produced This information, combined with pubhished market pnces,
becomes the basis for estimating the revenues sncluded 10 a monthly cash flow report arculated for use by management and the Board
Additionally, a schedule of the expected receipts and disbursements by category expected in the next eight to twelve weeks 15 maintained
for managing cash flows The Group also prepares a formal budget for adoption by the Board on an annual bass

As a part of the credit fachity wath its prinopal bank (Note 15 “Borrowings™), the Group has an independent audit of 1ts o1l and natural gas reserves
done on a penodic basis (at least annually) This audit prowides an unbiased third party estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
proved, probable and possible reserves, using certam expected future commodity prices, o1l and natural gas preductton rates and other related
cost assumptions
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4. Pinancial risk management continued

4.8 Falr value estimation

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables and borrowings with a matunty of less than one year are assumed to approximate
their book values The fair value of forward contracts {01l and natural gas hedges and interest rate swaps) has been determined based on market
forward rates at the statement of financial position date (Note 16 “Financial instruments™) The Group's borrowings due 1n more than one year
bear interest at prevailing market rates and their fair values are assumed to approximate their book values

5. Operating segments

The chief operating deasion maker has been identified as the Group's Board of Directors The Board of Directors reviews the Group's internal reporting
n order to assess performance and allocate resources The information provided to the chief operating decision maker 15 measured 1n a manner
which 15 consistent with the financial statements and management has determined the Group has one operating segment {exploration and
production) based on these reports and other factors The exploration and production segment consists of the acquisition, exploration,
development, production and operation of o1l and natural gas properties in the Gulf Coast region of the United States The exploration and
production segment derives all of 1ts revenues from external customers External customers exceeding 10% of total revenues dunng the penod
ended 30 June 2010 included two o1l purchasers ($11 5 mullion), two gas purchasers ($6 9 million) and the operator of the natural gas hquids
processing plant {($2 7 million)

Results of operations by segment

Explaraton Conscladated
and production wna!
Hote $000 $000
Year ended 30 June 2010
Revenues 8 23,228 23,228
Operating expenses 8 (10,006) {10,0086)
Depreciation and amortisation (12,188) (12,188)
Operating profit 1,034 1,034
Adrmumistrative expenses 8 (15,210)
Other losses and gang 8 835
Finance income 6 71
Finance costs 7 (3,644)
Loss before taxation (16,914)
Restated year ended 30 June 2009
Revenues 8 33,823 33,823
Operating expenses 3 (5.982) (5,982)
Depreciation and amortisation (18,368) (18,368}
Operating profit 9,473 9,473
Admirustrative expenses 8 (12,152)
Other losses and gains 8 8,097
Impairment expense 11,12,30 (25,145) (25,145
Finance income 6 130
Finance costs 7 (3,979
Loss on sale of assets (2,472) (2,472
Loss before taxation {26,048)
Total assets by segment
Restated
30 June 2010 30 June 2009
$000 $000
Exploration and production 158,877 154,678
Unallocated assets 18,123 19,402

177,000 174,080
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6 Finance income

www leedpetroleum com

The Company'’s interest income on bank and ather deposits during the years ended 30 June 2010 and 2009, respectively, were as follows

Finance income
Group
2010 2009
$000 5000
Interest income on bank and other deposits 71 130
7. Finance costs
The Company’s finance costs dunng the years ended 30 June 2010 and 2009, respectively, were as follows
Finance costs
Group
2010 2009
$000 $000
Interest payable on borrowings and other finance obhgatnons 1,920 2,454
Other financing costs, including charges on undrawn credit facilities 1,537 1,342
Interest relative to equity instrument issued with loan — —_
Unwinding of decommissioning provision 208 302
Foreign exchange losses - -
3,665 4,098
Less finance costs capitalised 1n property, plant and equpment (21) (119)
3,644 3,979
8. Loss for the period
Selected itemns compnsing the loss for the periods ended 30 June 2010 and 2009, respectively, along with selected metrnics, are as follows
Selected ftems comprising loss
Grovp
Restated
2010 2009
Metric $000 Metric 5000
Included 1n revenue
- Crude o1l (bbl) $73 92/bbl 12,068 $58 88/bbl 18,798
- Natural gas (mcf} $4 64/mcf 6,946 $5 67/mcf 12,303
- Natural gas hquids (ngl) $1 06/ngl 1,524 $0 92/ngt 2,204
- Gas plant processing fees 2,690 518
23,228 33,823
Included in cost of sales
- Lease operating costs $8 65/boe 3,864 $5 30/boe 3,909
- Expensed workovers and repairs $8 22/boe 3,669 $2 14/boe 1,580
- Gas plant processing costs 2,473 493
- Depletion costs (Note 12) $24 89/boe 12,188 $27 61/boe 18,368
22,194 24,350
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Group
Restated
2010 2009
$000 3000
Included 1n administrative expenses
- Depreciation and amortisation of other fixed assets (Note 12) 106 128
- Employee benefits expense (MNote 21) 6,794 7,062
- Professional fees and outside consultants 1,366 459
~ Delay rentals for evaluation assets 539 339
- Insurance, mcluding that related to o1l and natural gas properties 6,121 3.657
- Office rent 243 238
- Other 41 269
15,210 12,152
Included 1n other gans and losses
- Unreahsed mcome (loss) from fair valuatrons (Note 16) (969) 6424
- Reahised income from denvative transactions 1,700 1,673
- Gain on sale of pipe inventory 104 —
835 8,097
Included 1n impairment expense
- East Cameron 317/318 field — 23,461
- Intangible exploration and evaluation assets -_— 1,684
- 25,145

Professional fees were substantially higher for the year ended 30 June 2010, as compared to the prior year, due to additional contract engineening
costs incurred throughout the year and higher costs pertaining to technicat advisory services associated with the Company's continued listing on

AIM following 1ts successful equity raising and the amendment of 1ts credit faclity dunng November 2009

9. Taxation

A summary of taxation charges, and components thereof, incurred dunng the years ended 30 June 2010 and 2009, respectively, are set outin the

tables below based on a tax rate of 36% pertammng to the US subsidianes

Taxation for period
Group
Restaced
2010 2009
$000 $000
Deferred tax (Note 18}
- Continuing operations 6,083 7.510
- Reversal of net deferred taxes (7,230) —
(1,147) 7,510
Taxation components
Group
Restated
2010 2009
$000 1000
Loss on ordinary activities before tax
= Continuing operations (16,945) (26,048)
Tax effects
(Loss) income on ordinary actinties multiphed by rate of corporation tax {28%) in the UK (4,745) (7,293}
Disallowed portion of UK tax provision asset (Note 18) 4,745 7,293
Effect of different tax rates of overseas subsidiaries 6,083 7.510
Reversal of net deferred taxes (7,230) —
Total tax (1,147) 7,510
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10. Goodwill

Goodwill of $29 0 milhon arose from the acqusition of Leed Petroleum LLC {formerly Darcy Energy, Ltd ) by Darcy Energy Holdings, LLC on

8 December 2005 and has been allocated to the Group's exploration and production segment, which compnses all of the Group's CGUs The key
assumptions utihsed 1n the annual goodwill impairment test at 30 June 2010 included a weighted average cost of capital rate of 11 64% used

to discount to future net cash flows covenng the life expectancy of the proved and probable reserves of assets compnising the exploration and
production segment Commodity prices used mn the impairment test were the average 1 July 2010 NYMEX Light sweet crude o1l strip {starting

at $72 95 per bbl on 1 July 2010, nising to $89 00 per bblon 1 December 2018 and held constant thereafter) and the average Henry Hub natural
gas price strip (starting at $4 72 per mmbtu on 1 July 2010, nsing to $8 25 per mmbtu on 1 January 2021 and held constant thereafter) Additional
assumnptions ncluded expected future production volumes, capital costs, fixed operating costs and vanable operating costs The resulting total
net cash flows were then further reduced by a total of 15% for unexpected additional down time Based on the imparrment test conducted

at 30 June 2010 utilising the aforementioned components, goodwill was not impaired at 30 June 2010

The goodwill testing at 30 June 2010 indicated sensitivities pnmanly to the priang of ol and natural gas, which histoncally have been very
volatile A sensitvity to the test indicated that there would be an impairment of goodwill of approxamately $9 4 million if commodity prices
fell 35% (average of $49 65 per bbl and $4 00 per mmbtu) over the life expectancy of the cash flows

The majonty of the Group’s proved and probable reserves (78% calculated on a BOE basis per the 1 July 2010 reserve report) are currently
undeveloped and wll require substannal future capital expenditures wo develop. The reserves unibsed for goodwill Mmparment testing Field
CGU impairment testing and calculating depletion expense assume the Group will be able to fund the future development costs necessary
fully develop such non-producing reserves

11. Intangible exploration and evaluation assets
A summary of the Group’s intangible exploration and evaluation assets follows

Reconciliation of intangible exploration and evaluation assets

Group

5000

At 30 June 2008 5,284

Additions 758
Transfers to property, plant and equipment (2,114)
Unsuccessful acqusition costs (16)
Impairment (1,684)

At 30 June 2009 2,228

Additions 739
Unsuccessful acquisition costs (11)

At 30 June 2010 2,956

The impairment of $1 7 milhon during the year ended 30 June 2009 relates to the abandonment of undevelaped properties Delay rentals for
evaluation properties were $539,000 and $339,000 for the years ended 30 June 2010 and 2009, respectively Delay rental expense, unsuccessful
acquisition costs and impairment are included with admimistrative expenses in profit and loss
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12. Property, plant and equipment
A summary of the Group’s property plant and equipment follows

Croup
Ol and natural Leasehold Other
At assets EnpToVeTents fized assets Tatal
3000 $600 $000 $000

Cost
At 30 June 2008 149,830 63 462 150,355
Additions and adjustments
- separately acquired 45,815 61 54 45,930
- adjustment to asset reurement obhgation (1,797 — — (1,797
- transfers from evaluation 2,114 —_ — 2,114
Disposals
- cost of assets sold (20,019) — - {20,019)
At 30 June 2009 175,943 124 516 176,583
Additions and adjustments
- separately acquired 16,313 - 7 16,320
- adjustment to asset retirement obhigation 483 — — 483
Disposals
- cost of pipe inventory disposed of {1,136) — — {1,136)
At 30 June 2010 191,603 124 523 192,250
Accumulated depreaation
At 30 June 2008 11,492 32 268 11,792
- Charge for the year 18,368 37 g1 18,496
- Impairment allowance {restated)} 23,461 —_ — 23,461
- Disposals (823) — — (823)
At 30 June 2009 (restated) 52,498 69 359 52,926
- Charge for the year 12,188 43 63 12,294
At 30 June 2010 64,686 112 422 65,220
Net book amount
At 30 June 2008 138,338 31 194 138,563
At 30 June 2009 (restated) 123,445 55 157 123,657
At 30 June 2010 126,917 12 101 127,030

The depreciation charge for ol and natural gas assets 15 disclosed separately withuin profit and loss The o1l and natural gas assets are mortgaged
as securnty for the Group’s bank credit facility {Note 15 “Borrowings™} Included withm other fixed assets 1s equipment acquired under financing
leases with a carrying value of $4,000 and $6,000 at 30 June 2010 and 2009, respectively

Non-cagh impatrment of non-core property

Due to a change n the application of accounting policy which resulted from a more detailed and ngorous examination of assets within the
Group's single operating segment, a determination was made that multiple CGUs exist When the carrying value of assets was reviewed on

a mult-CGU basis as compared to the single CGU approach previcusly utthsed, a non-cash impairment was identified with respect to the

East Cameron 317/318 field {a non-core and non-operated property for which the Group has a 25% working interest, which was offline from
August 2008 until December 2009 due to third party pipehne damage from Hurncane tke) Upon further analysis, it was determmined that this
field was imtially impaired at 30 June 2009 ($23 5 ruilion before tax non-cash imparrment expense based on a calculated net present value of
future net cash flows discounted at a weighted average cost of capital rate of 11 19% at that date), due primanly to falling natural gas prices
Natural gas prices utihised for the 1 July 2010 reserve report improved shightly as compared to the 1 July 2009 reserve report, and the Group's
weighted average cost of capital rose to 11 64% as a result of the equaty raise and debt re-fAnancing accomplished dunng the 2010 financial year
The net impact of the two aforementioned factors resulted 1n no additional impairment expense or recovery for the penod ended 30 June 2010
No amounts relating to any components of the property, plant and equipment balances as of 30 June 2008 were affected by this restatement
Accordingly, the Company has restated the affected amounts within the financial statements as appropnate for the penod ended and as of

30 June 2009 as per IAS B "Accounting pohcies, changes in accounting estimates and errors” (Note 30 "Restatement of prior penod”)
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12. Property, plant and equipment contmued

Possible sale of oil and natural gas property assets during financial year 2011

Due to changes in circumstances since the end of the 2010 financial year, the Group 1s exploning a strategic alternative that includes divesting
some or all of 1ts o1l and natural gas assets The primary purpose of such a transaction would be to provide funds necessary to reduce the Group’s
borrowings by at least $12 0 muillion on or before 31 March 2011, when a $12 0 milbon prnincipal payment 1s due on the Company’s credit facihity
Should the Company consummate such a transaction, there can be no assurance that the net proceeds will exceed the Company’s carrying value
of such assets (Note 31 “Post-statement of finanaial position events - revision to the credit facilhity waith UniCredit Bank AG”)

13. Trade and other receivables
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value

Group Compary

2010 2009 2010 2008

5000 5000 $000 000

Trade recervables 4,176 4,721 — —
Jomnt interest billings recervable 186 142 — —
Notes recervable from subsidiary undertakings — — 1,000 1,000
Other recervables 434 171 14 7
Prepayments 866 5,684 10 5
5,662 10,718 1,024 1,012

Short-term trade and other receivables 5,662 10,718 24 12
Long-term notes recervable — — 1,000 1,000

Trade recervables, joint interest recewvables, other receivables and prepayments represent the primary exposure to credit risk. As discussed in
Note 4 3 “Financial nsk management - credit nsk”, credit nsk 1s concentrated particularly to five customers within the trade receivables category
in the above table As 1s the industry practice, the sale of oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids 1s remitted by purchasers on a monthly basis The
Company's pro-rata share of gas plant processing fees 1s also remitted on a monthly basis At each statement of financial posttion date presented
there are no material amounts that are past due

At 30 June 2010, a recamvable for gas production pertaining to the Group’s 25% working interest share of natural gas production from 1ts East
Cameron 317/318 field covenng the production penods of December 2009 to June 2010 1n the amount of $340,000 was mcluded within trade
recewvables Of that amount $262,000 represented the Group's share of December 2009 through April 2010 natural gas production revenues and
was delinquent Effective May 2010, the operator dedicated the proceeds from its 75% working interest share of natural gas production from the
East Cameron 317/318 field towards payment of the outstanding amount owed to the Group The Group recewved payments dunng July and
August 2010 that covered the delinquent amount Accordingly, the Group did not prowide a bad debt allowance for this recewable at 30 June 2010

At 30 June 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, the Company had an outstanding note recewvable from 1ts US operating subsidiary with an
outstanding prinaipal balance of $1 0 mullton that is due 1n 2015 As 1t bears mterest at floating rates, which represent prevailing market rates,
the Directors consider the carrying amount of the note approximates its fair value at each statemnent of financial position date

14. Trade and other payables
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to their fair value and 1s generally payable withun 30 to
45 days of the relevant penod end

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
$000 5000 $000 $000
Trade payables 8,531 4,351 254 141
Amounts owed to Group undertakings — — 731 278
Accruals and deferred income 84 70 — —

8,615 4,421 985 419
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15. Borrowings
A summary of the borrowings at 30 June 2010 and 2009, respectively, follows

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
$000 $000 $000 $000
Current
Other finance obhgations 4 3,264 —— —_—
Bank loans 1,500 — — —
1,504 3,264 — —
Non-current
Bank loans 25,000 40,815 —_ —

At 30 June 2010, the Group did not have any of its msurance policies financed Dunng the year ended 30 June 2009, the Group financed
renewals of 1ts insurance policies with a finance company (‘other finance obligations”) In total $4 6 million was financed, after a 30% down
payment, in three contracts The balance for each was due in nine monthly, fixed instalments The nterest rates for the three contracts ranged
from 3 8% to 5 5%

Bank loans are denominated in US Dollars and bear mterest based on LIBOR The credit fanhty 13 secured by a mortgage on the Group's ol

and natural gas properties, a secunty interest n the proceeds from the sale of hydrocarbons as they are produced, a guaranty by the Company
and by a secunty mnterest in the shareholding of the Company's subsidianes, Leed Petroleurn Inc and Leed Petroleum LLC (the Group’s operating
subsidiary) (Note 23 “Investments in subsidianes™)

As the Group's bank borrowings bear interest at floating rates, which represent prevailing market rates, the Directors consider the carrying
amount of these borrowings approximates theur fair value

The weighted average nterest rates on the Group's borrowings at 30 June 2010 and 2009, respectively, follow
Weighted average interest rates

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
x % L) %
Bank borrowings - floating rates 45 56 — —
Finance leases - fixed rates 47 3855 — —

For the year ended 30 June 2010, the median bank floating rate was 0 59% and ranged from 0 38% to 1 28% Assuming a movement of 45 basis
points to the ending balances to the bank at 30 June 2010, such movement would increase or decrease post-tax net income by $763,000 for the
year For the year ended 30 June 2009, the median bank floating rate was 2 75% and ranged from 1 10% to 4 40% Assuming a movement of 165
basis points to the ending balances to the bank at 30 June 2008, such movemnent would increase or decrease post-tax net income by $433,000 for

the year

Maturity of bank loans
The matunity profile of the Group's non-current bank loans at 30 June 2010 and 2009, respectively, follows
Group Company
2010 200 2010 2009
$000 $000 000 $000
Between one and two years 1,500 — - —
Between two and five years 25,000 40,815 —_ —
Mgre than five years - — _ —
26,500 40,815 — —
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15. Borrowings continued

Amended credit facility

Duning the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group placed 400,000,000 new Ordinary Shares of 5 pence par value at 5 pence to raise £20 rmillion
before expenses (the "Fundrasing”), which was inter-conditional with amending its existing credit facility (the "Amended Facility”™) between
Leed Petroleum LLC {a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) and UnuCredit Bank AG The Group expensed fees of $0 5 mllion in conjunction
with the amendment Primary terms of the amended facihity as of 30 June 2010 are as follows

the facility consists of two tranches ranked pan passu the available revolving faclity and the available term faclity,

the available revolving facility 1s subject to a sei-annual borrowing base redetermination set at the discretion of UniCredit Bank AG
The amount of the borrowing base 1s calculated by UniCredit Bank AG based upon their valuation of projected cash flows stemming
from the Group’s 01l and natural gas reserves and their own internal critena The available revolving facihity 13 the lesser of

the aggregate of available revolving commitments,
the predetermined maximum revolving facility, or
the borrowing base amount, less

an amaunt equal to one-third of the aggregate amount cutstanding under the term facihty The maxirmrm revobving facility of $48 0 million
on 15 June 2010 will be reduced by $6 0 mithon on a semi-annually basis thereafter until the amended facility expires on 15 June 2014

The imitial available revolving facility at the time of amendment in Novemnber 2009 was $30 0 mullion with interest at three month LIBOR
plus a margn of up to a maximum of 4 25% On 15 June 2010, the available facithty was reduced to $25 O miflion per the redetermination
terms contarned within the amended facility with interest at three month LIBOR plus a margin of up to a maximum of § 25%,

the initial available term faaibity at the trme of amendment 1n November 2009 was $11 0 million The Group made pnincipal payments

of $9 5 million dunng the 2010 financial year, resulting 1n a pnincipal balance of $1 5 mithon at 30 June 2010 The term facibity has the
following repayment and interest schedule aggregate principal repayments of $0 5 rlbion dunng the second half of calendar year 2010
with interest at three month LIBOR plus 4 75% pnor to 15 June 2010 and three month LIBOR plus 6 75% thereafter through 15 December
2010, and aggregate principal repayments of $1 0 million during the calendar year 2011 with interest at three month LIBOR plus 7 0%, and

the existing secunty for the amended facility includes a mertgage on the Group's o1l and natural gas properties, a pledge of the proceeds from
the sale of o1l and natural gas from the Group's properties, the Group’s bank account funds, the Group's subsidiary stock and guarantees from
its affiliated compames The amended facility contams customary covenants including finanaial ratios calculated sermi-annually and covenants
that restrict the payment of cash dividends, share repurchases, borrowings other than from the facihties, sales or transfers of assets other
than permutted, loans to others, merger activaty, and hiens on collateral other than permitted without the prior consent of the lender

Prior to 30 June 2019, the Group requested a waiver from UniCredit Bank AG for certamn defaults which management expected to exist at

30 June 2010 In exchange for granting the waiver request, the Group agreed to a 2% margin increase on 1its credst facibty effectve 15 June 2010
In addition, on 30 June 2010, the Group made a principal payment of $3 0 milbion, reducing the overall principal balance of its credit facihty
to $26 5 mulkon ($1 5 mullion for the term and $25 0 milhon for the revolver) as of that date During November 2010, the Group reached an
agreement with the Group’s bank whereby the Group would make additional principal payment of $12 0 rmulhion on or before 31 March 2011
and the mterest rate on 1ts credit facility would increase by 1% effective 15 December 2010 1 return for waiving certain conditions of default
that may exist at the 31 December 2010 measurement date (Note 31 “Post-statement of financial statement events — revision of credit facility
with UniCredit Bank AG™)

At 30 June 2009, the Group's bank credit facthty was compnised of an $80 0 million facility that expired in $8 0 mullion mcrements serm-annually
commencing December 2009 through December 2013 At 30 June 20089, there was $185,000 of unamortised arrangement fees netted to drawn
amounts which were being amortised and reported with interest expense over the expected life of the loans The $185,000 of unamortised
arrangement fees were expensed when the facihty was amended during the year ended 30 June 2010, resulting in no such amounts cutstanding
at 30 June 2010 At 30 June 2009, the Group had borrowed $40 8 million of the $45 2 million available to be borrowed under the $80 0 milhon
credit facihty The summary of the Group’s commutted borrowing facihities are as follows

Maximum borrowing facility
Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

$000 $000 $000 000
Expinng within one year 12,000 16,000 — -
Expinng between one and two years 12,000 16,000 — —_
Expiring between two and five years 24,000 48,000 — —
Expinng after five years -— — — —

48,000 80,000 —_ —
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15 Borrowings contmued
Minimum payments for finance obligations
Mimmum payments that are due under other finance obligations at 30 June 2010 and 2009, respectively, follow

53

Group Company
2010 002 2010 2009
1000 5000 $000 $000
Within one year 4 3.217 _— —
Future finance charges on finance leases —_ 47 —_ -
Present value of finance lease habilities 4 3,264 — —
16 Financial instruments
A summary of finanaial assets and habihties by category at 30 June 2010 and 2009, respectively, follows
Financial instruments
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2609
3000 5000 $000 000
Non-current assets
Loans and recevables - — 1,000 1,000
Financial asset at fair value through profit or lgss 516 529 — —
516 529 1,000 1,000
Current assets
Loans and receivables 15,621 9,516 269 276
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss 1,019 2,314 — —
16,640 11,830 269 276
Current habilities
Other financal habihities 10,119 7,685 985 419
Finanaal hability at fair value through profit or loss 837 310 —_ —
10,956 7,995 985 419
Non-current liabilities
Other financial habihties 25,000 40,815 — —
Financial habihity at fair value through profit or loss 22 204 — —
25,022 41,719 — —
Derivative financial instruments
The Group manages its financial risks with denvatives, including hedging for changes in future o1l and natural gas prices The instruments
purchased are denominated n US Dollars, the Group's functional currency
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
5000 5000 $000 5000
Asgets
Forward commodity contracts 1,535 2,843 —_ —_
Denvative financial instruments assets 1,535 2,843 - —
Current partion 1,019 2,314 — —
Non-current portion 516 529 —_ —
Liabilhities
Forward commodaty contracts (668) (727) — —
Interest rate swaps {191) (487 —_ —
Dernvative financial instruments labihities (859) (1,214) — —
Current portion 837N (310 — —

Non-current portion (22) (504)
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16 Financial instruments continued

Other gains and losses

Gains and losses on denvative financial instruments that close 1n each penod are reahsed gains and losses Changes in the movement of the fair
value of denvative financial instruments that are still open at each statement of financial position date are unrealised gains and losses Both are
incleded 1n profit and loss for each period and shown as other gains and losses (Note 8 “Loss for penied”) A recap of those gams and losses for
each period 1s shown 1n the table below

Group Company
201¢ 2003 2018 2009
$000 $000 $000 $000
Commodity contracts reabsed gains 2,010 1,801 - -
Commodity contracts unrealised (losses) gauns (1,265) 6,479 — -
Interest rate swaps realised losses (310) (128) —_ —
Interest rate swaps unrealised gains (losses) 296 (55) — —
731 8,097 — —

Commodity contracts

As a part of 1ts bank credit facility (Note 15 "Borrowings™, the Group entered into erude o1l and natural gas commodity contracts, with staggered
effective and termination dates to manage its price nisk to o1l and natural gas Such contracts were entered into only at the US subsidiary level

A summary of the open contracts at 30 June 2010 and 2009, respectively, follows

Contract type Volumhes Floor price Valuarion level Thme peniod
At 30 June 2010

Natural gas swaps 202,197 mmbtu $589 - %6 89 Level 2 July 2010 ~ January 2011
Natural gas puts 420,000 mmbtu $594-3613 Level 1 July 2010 - January 2011
Natural gas puts 283,114 mmbtu $600 Level 2 March 2011 - March 2012
Natural gas puts 36,000 mmbtu $500 Level 3 Apnl 2012 - June 2012
Crude oil swaps 32,000 bbl $5530-$5685 Level 2 September 2010 - January 2011
Crude o1l puts 40,000 bbl $5500 Level 2 July 2010 ~ November 2011
Crude ol puts 37,406 bbl $7500 Level 2 April 2011 - June 2012
30 June 2009

Natural gas swaps 255,430 mmbtu $589-$772 Level 2 July 2008 ~ June 2010
Natural gas swaps 184,740 mmbtu $615-3%716 Level 2 July 2010 - June 2011
Natural gas puts 940,000 mmbtu $575-3670 Leveil July 2009 ~ June 2010
Matural gas puts 260,000 mmbtu $575-%6 50 Level 2 July 2010 - November 2010
Natural gas puts 80,000 mmbtu $6 20 - $6 40 Levell  December 2010 - January 2011
Crude o1l swaps 12,000 bbl $8535 Level 2 July 2009 - June 2010
Crude oil puts 32,000 bbl $55 30 - $56 85 Level 2 July 2010 - June 2011
Crude o1l puts 32.000 bbl $5500 Level 2 July 20089 - June 2010
Crude onl puts 32,000 bbl $55 00 Level 2 July 2010 - June 2011

Valuations levels in the above table are categonsed as follows
Level 1 far value based quoted prices for simalar instruments,
Level 2 fair value based on directly observable market inputs other than Level 1 inputs, and
Level 3 estimate, inputs not based on observable market data

At 30 June 2009, there were no crude ol and natural gas commodity contracts classified as level 3 and there were no significant movements between
level 1 and level 2 during the years ended 30 June 2010 and 2009, respectively For the year ended 30 June 2010, average end of month prices
of NYMEX/Henry Hub futures for the open contract periods above ranged from $4 38 to $6 06 per mmbtu for natural gas and average end of
month prices of NYMEX/WTI futures for the open contracts for crude o1l ranged from $75 80 to $81 09 per barrel Considering the unrealised
gan at 30 June 2010 and these movements to the volumes and fixed pnices of the contracts then open, a post-tax increase of $2,539,000 or a
post-tax increase of $1,699,000 could have resulted

For the year ended 30 June 2009, average end of month pnices of NYMEX/Henry Hub futures for the open contract periods above ranged from
$3 64 to $12 58 per mmbtu for natural gas and average end of month prices of NYMEX/WTI futures for the open contracts for crude o1l ranged
from $49 82 to $123 87 per barrel Considenng the unrealised gain at 30 June 2009 and these movements to the volumes and fixed prices of the
contracts then open, a post-tax increase of $479,000 or a post-tax decrease of $4,663,000 could have resulted
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16, Financial instruaments continued

Interest rate swaps

In December 2005, as a part of its bank credit facility (Note 15 “Borrowings™), the Group entered into interest rate swaps, with staggered effective
and termination dates, to manage 1ts exposure to Interest rate movemnents on its bank borrowings Such contracts were entered mnto only at the
US subsidiary level The swaps are compared to the vanable six month Bntish Banker Association rates for US Dollar denominated loans and
close semi-annually At 30 June 2010 the remaining swaps, their effective dates, notional amounts and fixed rates are as follows

Fened rate Nouanal amount
Effective date of inresest rate swap % $000
3 January 2010 61 3,910
6 July 2010 61 2,457
5 January 2011 54 1,018

For the year ended 30 June 2010, forward interest rates had a movement of 17 basis points over the effectve dates of the contracts then open
An ncrease or decrease of this amount in the forward interest rate at 30 June 2010 would have resulted 1n a post-tax change of $64,000 n net
mcome For the year ended 30 June 2009, forward miterest rates had a movement of 215 to 216 basis points over the effective dates of the
contracts then open An increase or decrease of this amount in the forward interest rate at 30 June 2009 would have resulted 1n a post-tax
increase of $49,000 or a post-tax decrease of $29,000

17. Decommissioning obligations
A summary of the Group’s decomnussioning obligations follows

Group

5000

30 June 2008 6,629

On acquisition 1,326

Charged to profit and loss (Note 7) 302
Revaluation (1,797
Disposals (872)

30 June 2009 5,588

On acquisition 1,490

Charged to profit and loss (Note 7) 208
Revaluation (807

30 June 2010 6,479

The costs assoaated with decomrmssioning an asset are recorded as a hability and as a part of the cost of the asset when it 1 acquired The decommussioning
costs are recorded at the present value of future obhgations when mitially incurred and then adjusted for mflation These estimates are reviewed
regularly to consider matenal changes that may have occurred At 30 June 2010, a revaluation in accordance with IFRIC 1 *Changes in existing
decomsmuissioning, restoration and stmalar habihues® was undertaken, resulung in a net decrease of $807,000 to the present value of the expected
obligation The revaluation offset was to property, plant and equipment [t 1s expected that the obligations, alf on Gulf of Mesxaco o1l and natural
gas terests, will not be incurred before 15 to 25 years from 30 June 2010, and are thus presented as non-current Prior to the 30 June 2010
revaluation, the previous revaluation was undertaken at 30 June 2009 and resulted 1n a net decrease of $1,797,000 to the obhgation

18. Deferred tax
Ag per Note 2 20 “Sigruficant accounting policies — gong concern”, the Company reversed all deferred tax asset and habihity balances at 30 June 2010
The movement on the net deferred taxes of both junsdictions 1 which the Company operates 15 as per the following

Net deferred taxes
Het Us Het UK
deferred tax deferred txx Total
000 $000 $000
30 June 2008 (6,740} 377 {6.363)
Profit and loss charge (restated) 7,887 (377) 7,510
30 June 2009 1,147 — 1,147
Profit and loss charge 6,083 — 6,083
Reversal of deferred tax balances (7.230) — (7.230)
30 June 2010 - — —_

Due to changes in UK tax legislation, it 15 expected that the Company wll not be subject to UK taxes on future dividends 1t receves from 1ts US
subsidiary As such, the Company has no deferred tax assets or habilities related to activities i the UK At 30 June 2010 net US deferred taxes
of $7 2 mulhion were unrecognised
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18 Deferred tax continued
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The movements in US deferred tax assets and babilities (prior to the offsetting of balances within the same junsdiction as permutted by IAS 12
“Income taxes”) dunng the period are shown below With the exception of share-based costs, they are calculated in full on temporary differences
under the hability method using a tax rate of 36%, which 1s the effective tax rate apphcable to the Group's operating entity 1n the US As the
Company's stock price at 30 June 2010 was below the exeraise price of the outstanding SARs awards, none of the current year share-based

payments related to the SARs was recognised in the current year

Deferred tax assets {(US)
Grovp
Share-based
costs Tax lozses Other Total
000 5000 $000 $000
At 30 June 2008 351 26,506 3,768 30,625
Adjustment of accelerated capital allowances per actual tax filings — {17,287) (1,073) {18,360)
Charged to profit and loss (restated) (346) 1,787 6,351 7,792
At 30 June 2009 5 11,006 9,046 20,057
Charged to profit and loss 818 10,679 2,645 14,142
Reversal of deferred tax asset balances (823) (21,685) (11,691) (34,199)
At 30 June 2010 — — —_ _
Deferred tax liabilities (US)
Geoup
Accelerated
capital
Other allowances Total
$000 $000 $000
At 30 June 2008 — 37,366 37,366
Adjustment of tax logses and other temporary differences per actual tax filings — (18,360} (18,360)
Charged to profit and loss 38% (485) (96)
At 30 June 2009 389 18,521 18,910
Charged to profit and loss {26} B.085 8,059
Reversal of deferred tax hability balances (363} (26,6086) (26,969)
At 30 June 2010 — —_ —
19. Issued capital
A recap of 1ssued capital follows
Group and Company
30 June 2010 30 June 2009
£000 £000
Authonsed
301,000,000 Ordinary Shares of 5 pence each 15,050 15,050
$000 $000
Issued and fully pad
676,020,767 Ordinary Shares at 30 June 2010 and 276,020,767 Ordinary Shares at 30 June 2009 60,335 27,178
A recap of movement i 1ssued shares follows
Issued shares Group and Compary
At 30 June 2008 Ordinary Shares (5 pence) 251,020,767
Additional shares 1ssued (5 pence) 25,000,000
At 30 June 2009 Ordinary Shares (5 pence) 276,020,767
Additional shares issued (5 pence) 400,000,000

At 30 June 2010 Ordinary Shares (5 pence)

676,020,767
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On 24 Novemnber 2009, the Company 1ssued an additional 400,000,000 Ordinary Shares at 5 pence par value at 5 pence per share, resulung m
net proceeds of $31 6 milhon The following Directors of the Company participated in the offering

Ordinary Shares
Dleector purchased in offertng Percent of affering
Robert Adair 4,000,000 100%
Howard Wilson 2,000,000 050%
James Slatten 2,000,000 050%
Robert Alcock 400,000 010%
Ian Shaun Gibbs 600,000 015%
Peter Hirsch 120,000 003%

9,120,000 228%

In additton to the above, IB Daiwa Corporation ("IBD”), the Company's largest shareholder, participated in the offering by purchasing 89,080,545
Ordinary Shares, or 22 27% of the total offering, through one of its affihates Also, certan members of the Group’s management team purchased
2,920,000 Ordinary Shares, or 0 73% of the total offering (Note 26 "Related party transactions”)

Options

Duning the year ended 30 June 2010, 1,147,288 options 1ssued prior to 30 June 2009 expired unexercised, leaving no options outstanding at
30 June 2010 As a part of its agreement with 1ts norminated adviser Matnix Corporate Capital LLP ("Matrix”} for services rendered relative to
the August 2007 pubhic hsting, Matrix receved an option to acquire 1,147,288 Ordinary Shares at 47 pence At that time, an independent appraiser
valued the option at $387,000, with assumptions that the Directors consider as reasonable The option expired unexercised in August 2009

A summary of movement in options to the Ordinary Shares of 5 pence follows

Weighted average Number Weighted average Number
exercise price of cptions exertlse price of options
for the for the tor the for the
year ended year anded year ended year ended
30 June 2010 30 Juse 2010 30 June 2009 30 June 2009
Outstanding at beginning of the penod 47 0 pence 1,147,288 27 O pence 4,415,863
Expired during the peniod 47 0 pence 1,147,288 25 2 pence (2,998,575)
Outstanding at end of the period — — 47 O pence 1,147,288
Exercisable at the end of the period —_ —_ 47 O pence 1,147,288
20 Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from continuing operations
A summary of the components of cash flows generated from continuing operations follows
Group Company
Restated
2010 2009 2010 2009
$000 $000 $000 $000
Loss before taxation (16,914) (26,048) (2,163) (1,917
Adjustments for
- Loss on sale off assets — 2488 _ —
- Impairment expense — 25,145 -— -
- Depreaation, depletion and amortisation 12,294 18,498 — —
- Finance mcome (71) {130) 53 {66)
- Finance expense 3,644 3,979 _— —
- Share-based costs 2,272 2,627 1,156 1,267
~ Translation reserve 7 — 7 g
- Fair value changes in denvative contracts 969 (6.424) — —
Changes in worlang capital
- Decrease/(increase) 1n trade and other receivables 5,056 (650} {13) 160
— Increase/(decrease) in payables 2,109 {1,570) 567 16
Cash generated from contimung operations 9,366 17,915 (393) (531)
Corporate taxation paid - — — -
Net cash from continuing operations 9,366 17,915 (393) (531)
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Cash and cash equivalents for the statement of cash flows
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Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
5000 $000 $000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 10,812 4,482 255 269
21 Employees, Directors and auditor remuneration
A summary of total employee and Director costs follows
Employee and Director costs
Group Compary
2010 2009 2010 2009
4000 $000 $000 3000
Wages, salaries, fees and bonuses 3,756 3,703 215 219
Social security costs 178 244 — 22
Other pension costs 88 98 _ —
Other benefits 500 390 —_ —
4,522 4,435 215 241
Share-based payments 2,272 2,627 1,156 1,267
6,794 7,062 1,371 1,508
The average number of personnel was as follows
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2003
Average number of Directors and employees 29 29 5 k]

Key management (part of employee and Director costs above)

The Company has two Executive and five Non-executive Directors In addition, the Company has a Chief Financial Officer ("CFO") who s not a
Director These eight indmduals are the key management of the Company (in accordance with [AS 24 *Related Party Disclosures™) The Executive
Directors and the CFO recewe no remuneration or fees specific to their role as Directors and Officers of the Company, they are employees of the

operaung subsidiary
Key management costs
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
$000 000 $000 5000
Fees, salanes and bonuses 1,304 1,258 215 219
Social secunty costs 36 61 -— 22
Other pension costs 20 19 — —
Other benefits 126 42 —_ —
1,486 1,381 215 241
Share-based payments 1,703 1,850 1,156 1,267
3,189 3.231 1,371 1,508

Other pension costs for key management are payments towards a money purchase scheme for the two (US) Executive Directors The Company

does not have any defined benefit programmes for any of its Directors
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21. Bmployees, Directors and auditor remuneration continued
Companies Act and AIM disclosures {part of employee and Directors cost)
Payments to Directors are recapped below

Director costs

Leed Petroleum PLC
annual report and accounts 2010

59

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
$000 $000 $000 $000
Fees, salanes and bonuses 1,029 1,100 215 219
Soaal secunty costs 25 52 — 22
Other pension costs 20 19 — —
Other benefits S0 36 — —
1,164 1,207 215 241
Total compensation by Director during the year ended 30 June 2010

Robert Howard Jaroes Robert lan Shaun Peter Stephen

Ada Wilson Slatten Mcock Gibbe Hirsch Fleming
Non-executtve  Presidentand Chief Operating  Mon executive  Non exeantive  Non-executive  Mon axecutive 2010
Chajrman CEC Officer Director Directar Director Drector Total
Director compensanon paid 1000 $000 5000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Wages, salanes, fees and bonuses 110 441 373 3¢ 19 28 19 1,029
Social secunty costs — 13 12 — — —_ — 25
Other pension costs — 10 10 — — — — 20
Other benefits — 62 27 — - — — 89
110 526 422 39 19 28 19 1,163

All outstanding SARS and RSUs applicable to Directors were 1ssued duning 2007 and were still outstanding and fully vested at 30 June 2010
Based on the closing share price of 3 45 pence at 30 June 2010, none of the outstanding SARs were in the money A summary of SARs and R5Us

awards applicable to Directors follows

SARs - Directors

Number of shares tobe Number of shates 1o be

Weighted average issued in respect of Weighted average tszved in respect of

for the year smded exerdsa price for the year ended exercise prce

30 June 2010 for the yerr ended 30 June 2009 for the year ended

pence 30 June 2010 pence 30 June 2009

Qutstanding, begimming of period 47 00 6,903,072 4700 6,903,072
Granted, forfeited, exercised, or expired during the penod _ — — —
Outstanding, end of period 47 00 6,903,072 47 00 6,903,072
Exercisable, end of pertod 47 00 6,903,072 4700 4,602,043

The SARs referenced m the above table were 1ssued on August 6, 2007 and contain vesting prowisions of one-third per year and a ten year life
The SARS were 1ssued to the mdhwidual Dhrectors as follows 2,510,208 SARs to Robert Adar, 1,255,104 SARs each to Howard Whlson and
James Slatten, and 627,552 SARs each to Robert Alcack, Peter Hirsch and lan Shaun Gibbs

RSUs - Directors

Nuniber of Russber of

shares awarded shares awarded

ytar ended year ended

30 June 2010 30 June 2009

Outstanding, beginning of period 1,255,104 1,255,104
Granted, forfeited, exercised, or expired during the pened — —
Qutstanding, end of peniod 1,255,104 1,255,104

All of the RSU awards in the above table apply to Robert Adar and were i1ssued on August 6, 2007 (Note 27 “Share-based payments - Directors

and employees”)
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21. Employees, Directors and auditor remuneration continued
Highest paid Director
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Payments to Howard Wiison (highest paid Director for the year ended 30 June 2010 and 2008}, President, CEQ and Executive Director, for the

year ended 30 June 2010 and 2009, respectively, were as follows

Croup
2010 2009
$000 $000
Salary and bonus 441 485
Socal security costs 13 15
Other pension costs 10 10
Qther benefits 62 22
526 532

Note 27 “Share-based payments — Directors and employees” provides detatls of the incentive schemes, duning the period, there were no sales

of shares under the incentive schemes

There were no other undertakings with the Directors

Auditor’s remuneration
A summary of the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor follows
Group Company
2010 2009 2016 2000
$000 $000 $000 $000
Services by the Company’s auditor
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor
for the audit of the annual financial statements 178 133 178 133
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and 1ts assoqates for other services
- Audht of financial statements of Company's subsidianes 68 — - —
— Intenm review of Company accounts 63 65 65 65
- Other services mcluding taxation 16 20 16 20
149 85 81 85

22, Operating lease commitments
The Group has the following operating leases

Office lease

The Group leases space for administrative purposes under two agreements a one and a five year operating lease, compnsing total monthly payments
of $19,000 per month as of 30 June 2010 These leases were combined and renewed as one lease effective 30 September 2010 for a penod of
two years, with an optional three year extension at the aforementioned monthly rate The office lease 15 stnctly for the use of improved realty

on a stated payment, certain basis and contains no other contingent, purchase or renewal clauses

Compressor lease

The Group leases the compressor that 15 vtilised on 1ts Eugene Island field, where 1t 1s the operator and has a 75% worlang mterest Gross rental
payments for the compressor are $32,000 per month for a period of 60 months which commenced 17 November 2009, with an option to continue

on a month-to-month basis at the end of the lease term

A summary of mimmum lease payments under the aforementioned non-cancellable operating leases follows

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
$000 $000 000 $000
Operating lease commitments
Withan one year 440 233 - -—
After one year and less than five years 910 56 — —

1,350 289
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23. Investments in subsidiaries

Leed Petroleum PLC, the Parent Company, owns 100% of the 1ssued Ordinary Share Capital in Leed Petraleum Enc (US holding incorporated
1 Delaware), who in turn, owns 100% of the 1ssued Ordinary Share Capital 1n Leed Petroleum LLC (hmited liabihty company incorporated
n Delaware acting as the operating entity of the Group) A summary of Leed Petroleum PLC's tnvestments n its subsidianies follows

Investment in subzidiaries - cost and net book amount
Company

5000
At 30 June 2008 119,842
Capital contnbution 28,162
Exprred Company equity instrument 1ssued with subsidiary loan (Note 19) (560}
Share-based payment of Company stock by subsidiary (Note 27) 1,358
At 30 June 2009 148,802
Capital contnibution 31115
Share-based costs 1,116
At 30 June 2010 181,033

The shareholdings of Leed Petroleum Inc and Leed Petroleum LLC are pledged as secunty for borrowings undertaken by Leed Petroleum LLC
(Note 15 “Borrowings”)

24 Capital commitments

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
$000 $000 $000 $000
Contracts placed for future capital expenditure
not provided in the financial statements 1,358 4,112 —_ —

At 30 June 2010, the Group had capital commitments covenng the sidetrack of a well in the Main Pass 64/65 field, where the Group has a
non-operated 25% working interest At 30 June 2009, the Group had capital commitments to estabhsh reserves 1 connection with potential
bonding oblgations to secure decommssioning work relating to certan of 1ts offshore properties

25. Contingent liabilities

The Group has contingent Liabilities 1n respect of legal claims ansing i the ordinary course of business It 1s not anticipated that any matenal
liabilties will arise from the contingent Labilities

The Group has recorded its estimated proportionate share of asset rettrement habilities 1 all of its o1 and natural gas properties (Note 17
“Decomirussioning obligations™) The Group 18 jointly and severally hable with its respective co-lessees for decommisstoning obhgations
assoaated with each mineral lease (Note 26 "Related party transactions™)

26. Related party transactions

Identity of related parties

The Group has a related party relationship with its subsidiaries, 1ts Directors, IBD, Asia Debt Management Galleus Fund Limited CADM™),
Asa Speaial Sitcuations GJP1 Limited ("ASSGJP1™) and Byron

Byron scouting agreement

In December 2005, n connection with the acquisition of the shares of Leed Petroleum LLC ("LP LLC”) (formerly Darcy Energy, Ltd), IBD agreed
that LP LLC enter into a “scouting agreement” with Byron for an imitial term of three years (Note 3 5 "Critical accounting judgements and key
sources of esimation uncertainty - treatment of overnding royalty interests”) Under this exclusive scouting agreement, Byron was to use its
best efforts to introduce o1l and natural gas producing property acquisition opportunities to LP LLC In return, Byron earned the night at its
election to receve exther a proportional 2% ORRI or to up to 25% of LP LLC's working interest in any properties acquired by LP LLC pursuant

to the agreement if Byron elects a workung interest pursuant to the agreement terms, Byron must pay LP LLC pro-rata up to 25% of LP LLC's
net investment in the property {out of pocket costs less any revenues) Duning the year ended 30 June 2009, the Group recorded a loss on sale
of assets of $2,472,000 pertaining to Byron's election to partiaipate in the Eugene Island field with a 25% working interest Subsequent to its
election to participate m the Eugene Island field, Byron sold a 7 25% working mterest to Len1 Gas & Oil PLC, leaving Byron with a 17 75%
working interest tn the Bugene Island field At 30 June 2010, approxamately 5 2% of Byron's outstanding shares were owned by certain Directors
of the Company and 0 4% of Byron's outstanding shares were owned by other professional employees of the Group Prior to the Company's imtial
public offening 1n 2007, IBD had an ownership mterest of approxamately 10% n Byron However, IBD sold sts mvestment in Byton to parties unrelated
to the Company during the calendar year 2008 Although the Byron scouting agreement expired in December 2008, both parties retain nghts to
acquure the respective interests in any Offshore Continental Shelf ("OCS™) blocks contiguous to those covered by the agreement
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26. Related party transactions continued
Byron scouting agreement continued
The status of the Company's praperties subject to the scouting agreement as of 30 June 2010 follows

Property Development staqus Byron election status

Eugene Island 133 Non-producing  Elected to take 25% working interest with no ORRI

Eugene Island 172, 183 and 184 Produang Elected to take 25% working interest with no ORRI

Grand Isle 95 and 100 Non-producing  Election pending

Main Pass 115 Non-producing  Election pending

Shap Shoal 197 Non-producing  Elected to take 25% working interest with no ORRI

Ship Shoal 201 Producing Elected to take 2% proportional ORRI

Ship Shoal 202 Non-producing  Elected to take 25% working interest with no ORRI, not a working interest owner
in the platform utilised to produce o1l and natural gas from Ship Shoal 201 A-6 well

South Marsh Island 8 Nen-praducing  Election pending

West Cameron 106 Non-produeing  Electton pending

Byron consultancy agreement

On 8 June 2006, LP LLC entered nto a consultancy agreement with Byron covening East Cameron 317, East Cameron 318, Main Pass 64,
Mam Pass 65 and Main Pass 57 (the "Mam Pass and East Cameron leases”), all of which are federal o1l and natural gas leases located offshore
n the Gulf of Mexico Under terms of the agreement, Byron agreed to provide geological and geophysical services pertaming to the Main Pass
and East Cameron leases for the same consideration set forth 1n the scouting agreement Prior to the consultancy agreement, LP LLC had
acquired a 25% workang interest the Maimn Pass and East Cameron leases (excluding Main Pass 57) that was not subject to the consultancy
agreement Either party may terminate the consultancy agreement at any tme with a 30 day wntten termination notice At 30 June 2010,

no additional working interest acquisitions involving the Main Pass and East Cameron leases had been completed to that date by LP LLC

and the consultancy agreement was still in effect However, on 8 September 2010 the Group elected to terminate this agreement effective

8 October 2010 As per the termimation clause within the consultancy agreement, the nghts and obhigations ansing prior to termination inure

Summary of related party transactions with Byron
A summary of transactions with Byron dunng the year ended 30 June 2010 and 2009, respectively, follows

2010 2009
$000 $000
Pro-rata share of o1l and natural gas revenues paid to Byron during year 5,501 7.940
Pro-rata share of joint venture costs billed to Byron dunng year 2,202 14,139
Joint interest receivable from Byron at penod end 132 142
Accrued o1l and natural gas revenues payable to Byron at penod-end 419 1426

The Group estimates Byron's share of costs to decommussion the Eugene Island field at the end of its economic life, based on 1ts 17 75% working
interest share at 30 June 2010, to be approximately $0 3 million on an undiscounted basis ($0 2 million discounted) before taking into account
any estimated salvage values Byron's pro-rata share of the Eugene Island field decommissioning costs represents an unsecured obligation

IB Daiwa Corporation

Following the public hsting of the Company 1 August 2007, the ownership mterest of the Company’s former ultmate parent, IBD, fell to approximately
42% IBD transferred its Leed Petroleum PLC shares to its whoily owned subsidhary, ASSGJP1, in June 2008 ASSGJP1's ownership was further
reduced to approxrnately 38% following a second equity fund raising n August 2008 ASSGJP1's shareholding was further reduced to approximately
29% following the November 2009 equity offening During February 2010, IBD transferred afl of its ownership of ASSGJP1 to ADM in exchange
for cancellation of debt owed by [BD to ADM At 30 June 2010, ADM, through 1ts wholly owned subsidiary AS5GJP1, owns 193,695,929
Ordinary Shares of the Company {(Note 19 “Issued capital”) Stephen Flerming, a Non-executive Director of the Company, served as an executive
director of IBD unt1l 28 February 2010 and 1s a former employee of ADM

Other related party transactions

Key management and Director compensation 1s disclosed in Note 21 “Employees, Directors and auditor remuneration” Related party
particapation in the Company's offening covenng the 1ssuance of 460,000,000 Ordinary Shares on 24 November 2010 1s disclosed in
Note 19 “Issued capital”
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27. Share-based payments - Directors and employees
The Company operates ane share-based cost scheme, the 2007 Ommbus Incentive Plan Under the plan, the Company has granted SARs and RSUs

SARs
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Awards entitle grantees to recerve the appreciation (based on the fair value of the stock) of the number of shares in respect of the SAR granted
over the exercise price The exercise price 18 normally (but not less than) the closing price of the Company'’s stock on the date of the award

The SARS have a ten year life, one-third (1/3) vest to the holder at each anniversary date of the grant over three years from the award date,

the SARs are subject to forfeiture dunng the vesting peniod if the Grantee’s service with the Group terminates, vested but unexercised awards
normally expire when the Grantee’s service with the Group terminates The SARs are expected to be settled with stock, although the Company
has the nght to settle them 1n cash or a combination of cash and stock Dunng the year ended 30 June 2010, the Company awarded 100,000
SARS to one indrnndual employee A bimormal tree model was used to value the granted award at $11,000 Principal inputs for the current year
award used in the model were a nisk free interest rate of 3 71%, expected volatihty of 73%, and, as in prior years, a 0% expected dividend yeld
Additional assumptions included an exercise factor of 2 25 and no turnover rate The Group will have an obligation to the Grantee for any gan
above the 5 pence nominal value on each share 1ssued to satisfy the obhgation, in addition to any related payroll tax expense A recap of the SAR

awards follows

Nurber of shares 1o be Humber of shares to be

Weighted average rsuad In respect of Weighted average tssued in respect of

for the year ended exarcise price for the year ended exertise price

30 June 2010 for tha year anded 20 June 2009 for the year ended

peace 30 June 2010 pence 30 June 2009

Outstandmg, beginming of pertod 43 56 11,794,461 4700 10,668,383
Granted during the period 10 50 100,000 2385 1,753,630
Forfeited during the period 44.86 {1,536,108) 47 00 {418,368)
Expired during the period — — 4700 (209,184)
Outstanding, end of period 42 64 10,358,353 4356 11,794,461
Exeraisable, end of penod 44 81 6,309,123 47 00 3,346,944

On 1 July 2010, the Company awarded 23,242,272 replacement SARs to certam executive officers and employees of the Company (Note 31
“Post-statement of financial position events™)

RSUs

Awards are performance based and entitle grantees to receive Company shares or cash equalling the fair value of the shares on the date of vesting,
at the Company's option Awards are valued at the fair value of the Company's stock on the date granted, unless market conditions are a part of
the performance or vesting condition The August 2007 market condition award (see table below) was valued using a statistical probabihity modet
Pnncipal inputs 1n that model were a 12% expected return on equity, an expected volatihity of 57% (as discussed above) and a 98 73% standard
dewnation over the three year pertod that vesting 1s considered The resulting probabilities for meeting the 8% and 20% per year compounding
growth were applied to the 47 pence market price of the stock at the August 2007 grant date, resulting in a valuation of $280,000 A description
of the RSU awards and their value at dates of grant follows

Date of grant Mumber of shares Performance canditon Award value at date of grant Vestng
March 2009 443,136 Non-market condition $95,000 50% at two years of service,
service requirement S50% at three years
August 2007 627,552 Market condition percentage 50% at three years if 8% per year
growth in Company compound increase, 50% at three years
share price from 47 00 pence $280,000 if 20% per year compound increase
August 2007 627,552 Non-market condition percentage $602,000 50% at three years if 8% per year
growth in after-tax value per fully compound increase, S0% at three years
diluted share of Company's proved if 20% per year compound increase

and probable o1l and natural gas reserves

RSU awards

Number of sbares Hurnber of shares
awarded year ¢nded awarded year ended
30 Juze 2010 30 June 2009
Outstanding, beginning of period 1,698,240 1,255,104
Granted dunng the period —_ 443,136
Outstanding, end of penod 1,698,240 1,698,240




6 4 Leed Petroleum PLC www leedpetroleum com

annual report and accounts 2010

Notes to the financial statements conunued
for the year ended 30 June 2010

28 Loss per Ordinary Share
A recap of logs per Ordmary Share and weighted average shares outstanding for the years ended 30 June 2010 and 2009, respectively, follows

30 June 2010 30 June 2009
Loss attnibutable to Ordinary Shareholders ($18,061,000) ($18,538,000)
Weighted average shares outstanding

Weighted average number of shares at end of the period 516,020,767 273,623,507
Effect of share options 1n 1ssue —_ 2,023,249
Weighted average number of shares at end of the period for diluted loss per share 516,020,767 275,646,756

29. Capital management policies and procedures
“The Board of Directors’ capital management goals and objectives are to ensure the Group's abihity to continue as a going concern and to provide
an adequate return to shareholders by managing the Group's productive assets and further developing 1ts asset portfoho

The Board of Dizectors directs and monitors the allocation of cash resources against projects to maximise the retum on asset value within the Group
Day-to-day worlung capital requirements and medium-term funding requirements are managed through use of internally generated funds and
the Group's bank faciity The Group also manages the effect of commodity price volatility through the purchase of 01l and natural gas commodity
dervative contracts covering 3 pornon of {ts expected future production of crude o1l and natural gas The Group manages the capital structure
and makes adjustments to 1t m hight of changes in economic conditions and the risk charactenstics of the underlying assets In order to mamtain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may pay dividends to shareholders, return capatal to shareholders, buy back shares, tssue new shares,
sell assets or reduce its borrowings, all of which may be subject to approvals from the Group's shareholders or bank

Capital components

Capital pertaiming to the Group for the reporting penods under review 1s summansed as follows
Restated
30 June 2010 30 June 2009
$000 $000
Tatal equity 134,543 118,778
Borrowings 26,500 40,815
Denvative financial instruments (net) {676) (1,629)
Cash and cash equivalents (10,812) (4,482
149,555 153,482

The Group stnives to meet the covenants under its credit facility with UmCredit Bank AG, icluding certain covenants pertaimng to (1) the

ratio of total Group equity to Group equity plus Group debt, (2) total Group debt compared to the total estimated net present value of 1its reserve
portfolio, (3) total Group debt compared to multiple of the total Group EBITDAX less certan adjustments, and (4) total Group EBITDAX less certam
adjustments compared to Group mterest expense At 30 June 2010, the Group obtained a wawer for the aforementioned items (3} and (4) from
UmiCredit Bank AG During November 2010, the Company reached an agreement with the Group's bank whereby the Company would make an
additional principal payment of $12 0 milbon on or before 31 March 2011 and the interest rate on its credut facility would increase by 1% effectve
15 December 2010 in return for warving certain conditions of default that may exst at the 31 December 2010 measurement date (Note 31

“Post statement of financial position events - revision to credit facility with UniCredit Bank AG™)

30. Restatement of prior period

At year end, the Group carried out a rigorous and detailed review of the assets withm its single operating segment and determined that separately
1dent:fiable mdependent sources of cash inflows existed within that segment Accordingly, the Group adopted a change in application of accounting
pohicy since the change would provide more relevant mformation In the pnior annual report for the year ended 30 June 2009, the Group classified

all of 1ts ol and natural gas fields with proved and probable reserves as one CGU Field CGUs are now based on mdmadual fields m distinct geographical
locations with proved and probable reserves, unless cash flows are directly hinked to another field Based on this new application of accounting
policy, the Group performed impairment tests for each Field CGU for the penods ended 30 June 2010 and 2009, respectively The wesghted average
cost of capital of 11 64%, and 11 19% was appled to the annual impairment test covering each Field CGU for penods ended 30 June 2010 and
2009, respectively

As a result of change i apphication of accounting policy, an imparment was identfied wath respect 1o the East Cameron 317/318 field {a non-core
and non-operated property for which the Group has a 25% working mnterest), which was offline from August 2008 until December 2009 due to
third party pipeline damage from Hurnicane Ike
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30. Restatement of prior period continued

Upon further analysis, 1t was determned that this field was imtially impaired at 30 June 2009 ($23 5 million before tax non-cash impairment
expense based on a calculated net present value of future net cash flows discounted at a weighted average cost of capital rate of 11 19% at that
date) due pnmarily to low natural gas prices Natural gas prices utihsed for the 1 July 2010 reserve report mproved shghtly as compared to the

1 July 2009 reserve report and the Group’s weighted average cost of capital rose to 11 64% as a result of the equity raise and debt re-finanang
accomplished during the 2010 finanial year The net impact of the two aforementioned factors resulted in no additional impairment expense or
recovery for the peniod ended 30 June 2010 Accordingly, the Company has restated the affected amounts within the financial statements for the
penod ended and as of 30 June 2008 as appropniate per IAS 8 "Accounting policies, changes 1 accounting estimates and errors”

A summary of the effect of the East Cameron 317/318 field impairment on the peniod ended 30 June 201015 summarised 1n the table below

Group
As previously stated As restated Effect of restatement

2009 2009 2009

1000 $000 £$000
Effect on the statement of financial position
Property, plant and equipment 147,118 123,657 (23,461}
Deferred tax (7,299) 1,147 B,446
Net decrease 1n net assets (15,015)
Retained defict 16,266 31,281 15,015
Net decrease 1n owners’ equity 15,015
Effect on the statement of consolidated income
Increase in impairment expense 1,684 25,145 23461
Increase Group loss before taxation 2,587 26,048 23,461
Increase 1n taxation (936) 7.510 8,446
Increase m Group loss for the period from
continumg operations and attributable to equity owners 3,523 18,538 15,015
Effect on the loss per share
Increase 1n basic loss per share {cents) 13 67 54
Increase in diluted loss per share (cents) 13 67 54

There was no cash flow impact as a result of the restatement applicable to the penod ended 30 June 2009

No line items wathin the statements of finanaal position at 30 June 2008 for the Group or Company, both of which are included heren for
comparative purposes in accordance with IAS 1 “Presentation of financial statements”, were affected by the above referenced restatement

31. Post-statement of financial position events

Replacement SARs

On 1 July 2010, the Company awarded 23,242,272 replacement SARs to certain executwe officers and employees of the Company The replacement
SARs vest one-third per year begmng two years from the date of grant, have an exercise price of 5 pence and a term of ten years The replacement
SARs1ssued on 1 July 2010 replace 5,200,708 SARs that were outstanding at 30 June 2010 pertaining to the same certain executive officers
and employees

Resumption of oil production at Main Pass 64/85

The Main Pass 64/65 field was completely shut in commencing 25 May 2010 for repars to the third party oil sales pipeline serving the field
Dunng August 2010, Medco Energ, the operator, began barging o1l to maintain crude o1l sales from the field while the pipeline was being
reparred Normal service by the third party pipeline operator resumed durning October 2010

Main Pass 64 #1 Sidetrack

On 23 August 2010, drilling operanions commenced on the Main Pass 64 #1 Sidetrack The Company holds a 25% non-operated working interest
and a 19 18% net revenue interest in the well. On 19 September 2010, the Main Pass 64 #1 Sidetrack reached a total measured depth of approxamately
8,086 feet and encountered approximately 71 feet of true vertical thickness pay covenng three sands, including 48 feet of true vertical thickness
pay in the pnmary targeted zone The well 1s expected to cost at least $5 4 milhon ($1 4 mullion net to the Group) and was placed on production
dunng November 2010
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31. Post-statement of financial position events continued

Revision to credit facility with UniCredit Bank AG

During November 2010, the Group reached an agreement with UmiCredit Bank AG, whereby the bank agreed to warve certamn conditions of default
concerning the Group’s credit facility that were expected to occur at the 31 December 2010 measurement date in return for the following

the Group will make a pnnapal payment of $12 0 million on the revalver facthty on or before 31 March 2011,

the interest rate on the revolver and term tranches of the credit facility will increase by 1% effective 15 December 2010 As a result, the
interest rate will be at 3 month LIBOR plus 7 25% for the revolver facility and 3 month LIBOR plus 8 0% for the term facility as of that date,

the maximum credit fachty will be set at $30 0 million as of 15 December 2010 and will be reduced by $6 0 mullion 1n a semi-annual basis
thereafter; and

the schedule prinaipal payments of the term faglity were unaffected (Note 15 "Borrowngs™)

45 of the date of this report the Group 1s explormg several alternatives mcluding divesting some or all of 1ts o1l and natural gas assets in order to
raise $12 0 mullion or more in order to pay off some or all of 1ts bank borrowings on or before 31 March 2011 Should the Group divest some or
all of 1ts o1l and natural gas assets, there can be no assurance that the sales price will exceed the Group’s carrying value of such assets Additional
alternatives under consideration include, but are not hmited to, securing a new bank credit facility and/or other potennial transactions, such as a
merger with another company
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Glossary

The following technical terms apply
throughout this document, unless the
context requires otherwise:

“1p”
Proved reserves

“zp”
the combined total of proved and
probable reserves

“bbl”
barrel(s)

bilhon cubie feet of gas

“bcfe”

billion cubic feet equivalent, deterrnined using
the ratio of s1x mcf of natural gas to one bbl of
crude oil, condensate or natural gas hquids

“boe”

barrels cil equivalent, determined using the
rat1o of one bbl of crude o1, condensate or
natural gas hquids to six mef of natural gas

llboepd"
barrels ol equivalent produced per day

“BOEMRE"

the Bureau of Ocean Energy Management,
Regulation and Enforcement 15 a bureaun
the US Department of the Interior and the
federal agency that manages the US’s i,
natural gas and other mineral resources on
the Outer Continental Shelf and conducts
federal lease sales

“bopd”
barrels of oil produced per day

“delay rental”

a provision 1n an oi-and-gas lease that provides
the lessee the right to maintain the lease from
penod to period dunng the primary term by
way of paying delay rentals instead of starting
dnlling operations
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“held by production”

when an acquirer holds the lease indefinitely,
as long as preduction 15 maintaned 1n paying
quantities The leaseholder wall have a set
period m which to start producing (called the
“pnimary term,” which 1s generally five years
for OCS leases in the shallow shelf water

and one or more years for onshore leases),
however, the lease generally expires after the
pnmary term once production, and operations
to obtain or restore production, have ceased
for 180 days for OCS leases and a shorter
period, generally 90 days, for onshore leases
In the event of a lapsing lease, the leaseholder
will generally be required to decommussion
existing equpment and return the leased area
to a state agreed with the lessor

“hydrocarbons”

crude o1}, natural gas and liquid natural gas
m the form first produced from below the
surface of the earth

“mboe”

thousand barrels o1l equivalent, determined
using the ratio of one bbl of crude o1l, condensate
or natural gas quids to s mef of natural gas

llmd"
thousand cubic feet

“mgal”
thousand gallons of natural gas hquids

“mmcf™

million cubic feet
“mmbo™

million barrels of oil

“mmboe”

mllon barrels o1l equrvalent, determuned using
the ratio of one bbl of crude oil, condensate or
natural gas hquds to six mecf of natural gas

“mmbtu”
milhon British thermal units
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“mmdd”
mithion cubic feet of gas produced per day

“ngl”
natural gas iquids

“0Ccs”
Cuter Continental Shelf

“operator”

the entity wath the nght and obhgation to
operate the lease or leases, when there 1s only
one working interest owner, these nghts and
obligations anse by virtue of being the sole
working mterest owner; when there are multiple
working mterest owners, these nghts and
obligations anse under a contract called an
operating agreement executed by the worlang
nterest owners of the lease or leases

“platform”

a structure attached to the seabed and nsing
above sea level onto which fachties and
equipment necessary to produce hydrocarbons
1n an offshore environment are located

“proved (or proven) reserves”

estimated volumes of crude o1l, condensate,
natural gas and natural gas hquids which,
based upon geologic and engineenng data,
are reasonably certain to be commeraally
recovered from known reservoirs under
existing economic and pohitical/regulatory
conditions and using conventional or existing
equipment and operating methods

“probable reserves”

are those reserves which geologic and engineenng
data demonstrate with a degree of certainty
sufficient to indicate they are more likely to be
recovered than not

“shut in”

a well that 1s closed down temporanly for
repair, bmlding up of reservoir pressure, lack
of market, lack of an available pipeline outlet,
or for some other reason

“spudded”™
a well1s “spudded” when a drll bit 1s first
turned and the earth’s surface 1s broken

“sidetrack”

to abandon a lower portion of a wellbore hole
and divert the dnll path 1n a new direction
using the upper portion of the bore hole, this
may be done to save dnlhing costs (the costs
of drilling the upper portion of the bore hole)
when targeting a new bottom hole location
or to bypass mechanical impairments or
equipment cbstacles in the onginal bore hole

usT"l
abbreviation of sidetrack relating to a
well number

“working interest” or “WI”

the lease interest which gives the owner the
nght to drill, produce and conduct operations
(subject to contractual nghts with other
jont working interest owners pursuant to
operating agreements) on a property and
share m production
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